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Group Structure
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Financial Highlights
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Major Financial Indicators and Ratios
FRMBRER LR

For the year ended 31st March
HEZA=+—HILFE

% changes

2020 2019 increase (decrease)
—EB-EF —E-NEF AOLLE S
HKS$ 000 HK$'000 #Om)
FHET FET
Operating results REXE
Revenue W zs 461,245 479,396 (3.8)
Gross profit EF 102,631 111,202 (7.7)
Operating profit £ A 5,132 4,939 3.9
Net loss E1E 55 3,249 2,914 11.5
HK cents HK cents %
A4l Bl
Per share data BREH
Loss per share G EE 3.8 (23.7)
Total dividend per share FARLENR B 1.0 -
Net assets per share BREEFE 79.5 (11.1)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FHExT FHT
Financial position B Rk
Total assets BEHAE 306,355 299,072 2.4
Net assets BEFE 141,484 159,088 (11.1)
Financial ratio o7/ Y
Current ratio (Times) mENEL R (fF) 1.9 (15.8)
Quick ratio (Times) RB)LL K () 0.7 (14.3)
Gross margin (%) EFIZR(%) 23.2% (0.9)
Net gearing ratio (%) R A E AR E(%) 40.6% (9.8)
Days %
H
Turnover ratio Ay R
Inventory turnover FEEE 168 06
Debtors turnover JiE Us AR B 38 26
Creditors turnover FEf BR AR 27 11.1
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Financial Highlights
RUECE T

For the year ended 31st March &= = A=+ —HILF/E

Revenue by Geographical Segments (by %)
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Revenue by Business Segments (by %)
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CEQO’s Statement
TR R

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 31st March 2020, the Group recorded a
turnover of around HK$461 million, representing a decrease of about
3.8% from approximately HK$479 million recorded in the last year. Gross
profit decreased by about 7.2% from approximately HK$111 million
in the last year to around HK$103 million in this year, while the gross
profit margin decreased by about 0.9% from 23.2% to 22.3%. The Group
recorded an operating profit of approximately HK$5.1 million (31st March
2019: profit of approximately HK$4.9 million). The loss attributable to
shareholders was approximately HK$5.7 million (31st March 2019: loss of
approximately HK$7.7 million). This represented loss per share of around
HK$0.029 (loss per share of around HK$0.038 as at 31st March 2019). The
Board has resolved that subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, a final dividend
of HK0.5 cent per ordinary share shall be declared for the year ended
31st March 2020, totally HK$1 million to the shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company on 18th August 2020.
The final dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on 2nd September
2020.

During the year under review, the Group continued to focus on its three
core business operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic
components, automation parts and equipment under the brand of mesieon
(the “Electronic Trading Business”); and (2) the Computer Business which

includes (i) the retail sales of computer products and smartphone
accessories under the brand of

Business”) and (ii) the distribution of computer products and consumer
products under the brand of ”ﬂ@ (the “Computer Distribution Business”);

and (3) the Cosmetic Business and Online Retail Business mainly under
the brand of wishh! (“Cosmetic and Online Retail Business”). During the
year under review, the Group's turnover derived from the Electronic
Trading Business increased approximately 0.3% to about HK$287 million
from approximately HK$286 million in the last year. Turnover from the
Computer Business was recorded as about HK$97 million, which
represented an increase of approximately 3.2% from about HK$94 million
in the last year. Turnover from Cosmetic and Online Retail Business
decreased 22.2% to about HK$77 million from approximately HK$99
million in the last year.

W5 £ 4
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CEOQO’s Statement
AT B AR

For the financial year ended 31st March 2020, the Group’s total operating
expenses were approximately HK$101 million, representing a decrease
of about 8.2% (31st March 2019: about HK$110 million), among which
the distribution and selling expenses were approximately HK$36 million
which have decreased by about 7.7% from HK$39 million recorded in the
last year. During the year under review, the general and administrative
expenses decreased by about 8.5% to around HK$65 million (31st March
2019: about HK$71 million). As at 31st March 2020, the headcount for
the Electronic Trading Business increased from 251 full-time employees
last year by about 21.9% to 306 full-time employees this year while
the headcount for the Computer Business decreased from 53 full-time
employees last year by about 9.4% to 48 full-time employees this year and
the headcount for Cosmetic and Online Retail Business decreased from 29
full-time employees last year by about 24.1% to 22 full-time employees
this year. Meanwhile, finance cost for the year under review increased
by about 12.5% to approximately HK$3.6 million (31st March 2019:
approximately HK$3.2 million).
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CEOQ’s Statement
AT B AR

Development Strategy and Outlook

The global economy in 2020 is still dependent on the development of the
trade war between China and the United States. Despite a preliminary
trade agreement reached by the two countries suggested a relief in trade
tensions, it is believed that global economy will take time to recover even
if no further escalation to the trade disputes.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has disrupted the economic activities around the
world. The Group's subsidiaries in Malaysia, Singapore and South Africa
have taken cautionary measures and operated at limited capacity during
the ‘lockdown’. Most of the offices were able to resume normal operation
in June 2020. To cope with the challenging situation, governments
around the world provide financial supports to businesses. In Hong Kong,
the government offers comprehensive relief packages like Employment
Support Scheme and Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme to support businesses
and individuals. These measures are expected to have stabilizing effect on
the economy.

Despite of the economic headwinds, the Group is optimistic about its
Electronic Trading Business in South Africa. The Group believes that the
acquisition of Swan and Switch can achieve synergy. The Group's strong
merchandising network in China can enhance the sourcing of Swan while
the large client base of Swan and Switch enables the Group to reach a new
group of potential customers.

TR K e B
ST oTEMRFE BRIV EE S8
BE - REMECERNSES 0% - ERTE
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CEOQO’s Statement
AT B AR

With regard to the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business, both the Group’s
own channel and third party platform recorded considerable growth during
the year under review. With increasing popularity of online shopping,
the Group expects that revenue from online sector will continue to grow
constantly. The Group will keep inputting resources in social media
marketing for driving the sales and improvement of logistics for coping
with increasing transactions volume.

Regarding the Computer Business, the Group will improve its marketing
strategies to increase its market presence through channels such as
social media network. Also, the Group will continue to explore distinctive
products and introduce new brands to maintain the market share of the
Computer Distribution Business in the local market.

Appreciation

| ' would like to thank our management team and all our staff members
for their effort and significant contribution to the Group during the past
year. In addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, institutional investors, customers, bankers and business
partners for their continuous support to and confidence in the Group.

By order of the Board
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30th June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

Business Review

During the year under review, the Group operated in three core business
operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components,
automation parts and equipment under the brand of Me&iesx (the “Electronic
Trading Business”); (2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the retail
sales of computer products and smartphone accessories under the brand
of L=1VideoCom (the “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of
computer products and consumer products under the brand of @ (the
“Computer Distribution Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic Business and
Online Retail Business mainly under the brand of WiSh,h! (“Cosmetic and
Online Retail Business”). The Electronic Trading Business, the Computer
Business and the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business accounted for
approximately 62.3% and 21% and 16.7% of the Group's total turnover
respectively for the year under review.

By analysis on the three core business operations, the gross profit margin
of the Electronic Trading Business, the Computer Business and the
Cosmetic and Online Retail Business were approximately 21.6%, 21.6%
and 25.4% respectively for the year ended 31st March 2020 (31st March
2019: approximately 23.9%, 20.4% and 23.8%).

Electronic Trading Business

Hong Kong

Electronic Trading Business remained the primary contributor to the
Group’s revenue during the year under review and recorded revenue of
approximately HK$287 million as compared with that of approximately
HK$286 million recorded in the last year, representing an increase
of approximately 0.3%. The trade dispute between the United States
and China dragged on. The business sentiment was greatly affected.
Customers remained prudent in production scale and tightened control on
purchases. The adverse effect has become more significant during the year
ended 31st March 2020, not only in the Hong Kong market, but also the
Southeast Asia market.

305 o] g

REEEE  AEEES=AROEE - 8 (1)
LA MOmON 5 21 B FIT A - 4 ED(L AR 1 R
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wEHDELE (BT eEs)) R 22
ARRHERESREEESHHEBE (B
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LHEEE I TEEB (LR RE By
K1) o REEEE  BFEEEE - BIEH
RS RE I TEERA R A A B EE
#962.3% ~ 21% }16.7% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o L i S S A

Overseas

The aggregate turnover of all of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries was
approximately HK$134 million for the year ended 31st March 2020,
representing an overall increase of approximately 25.2% as compared with
that of approximately HK$107 million recorded in the last year.

The Group's subsidiaries in South Africa recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$99 million for the year ended 31st March 2020,
representing an increase of about 37.5% from approximately HK$72
million in the last year. On 2nd April 2019, the Group acquired 65%
of the equity interests in Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited (“Swan”) for a
cash consideration of approximately ZAR13.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$7.6 million) and recorded an amount of approximately
ZAR0.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.2 million) in respect of
goodwill on the acquisition. Swan is a reputable distributor and supplier of
electrical products and components in South Africa, which has more than
200 active customers. Also, on 1st February 2020, the Group acquired 75%
of the equity interests in Switch Technique (KZN) (Pty) Limited (“Switch”)
for a cash consideration of approximately ZAR4.5 million (equivalent

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

to approximately HK$2.3 million). Switch is a distributor for local
manufactured rotary cam switches, fuse and load break isolators, bypass
and change-over switches.

In Asia Pacific region, the Group recorded positive growth in its revenue
from its operations in China. In the past few years, the Group has been
actively expanding its LED power supply business in China. However, in
respect of Malaysia and Singapore, the Group's revenue declined as a
result of the negative impact of trade war between China and the United
States.

In terms of geographical segments, the turnover from Hong Kong, the
Asia Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and
other regions accounted for about 55.5%, 20.6%, 21.6%, 1.8% and 0.5%
respectively of the Group's total turnover during the year under review.

Computer Business

Computer Retail Business

For the year ended 31st March 2020, the Computer Retail Business
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$23 million (31st March 2019:
approximately HK$21 million), representing an increase of about 9.5%.
During the year under review, the Group recorded an improvement in
respect of the gross profit in the Computer Retail Business due to the
introduction of high profit margin products. Despite the adverse effect
of the outbhreak of COVID-19 on the retail market, the sales of computer
accessories increased unexpectedly, attributed to the surge in demands
due to the work-from-home arrangements.

Computer Distribution Business

For the year ended 31st March 2020, the turnover of the Computer
Distribution Business recorded an increase of about 1.4% to approximately
HK$74 million (31st March 2019: approximately HK$73 million). The Group
is delighted that the brand MEC is well recognized in the market through
successful marketing campaign on social media. MEC has become one
of the core products of the Computer Distribution Business. Meanwhile,
the Group obtained distributorship of a professional computer and mobile
accessories brand, which demonstrated high growth potential.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o L i S S A

Cosmetic and Online Retail Business

During the year under review, the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$77 million (31st March 2019:
approximately HK$99 million), representing a decrease of about 22.2%.
For cosmetic retail business, the impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 was
slight since the Group has reduced the number of physical stores and
redeployed the resources to online business in the past few years. And,
our strong sourcing network enabled us to import hygiene and sanitizing
products from worldwide to meet our customers’ demand. The revenue
from online business increased dramatically in the fourth quarter. To cope
with the fast growing online business, we input extra resources to enhance
our logistic centre.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st March 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$29 million and the net current assets were
approximately HK$101 million. As at 31st March 2020, the current ratio
decreased to approximately 1.6 (as at 31st March 2019: approximately 1.9).
Out of the Group’s cash and bank balances, about 48.3% and 8.1% were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars respectively.
The balance of approximately 8.6%, 16.3%, 6.1%, 2.7%, 3.4% and 6.5%
of its total cash and bank balances was denominated in Chinese Renminbi,
South African Rand, Malaysia Ringgit, New Taiwan dollars, Singaporean
dollars and Euro respectively. The Group’s total assets amounted to
approximately HK$306 million (as at 31st March 2019: approximately
HK$299 million). Net assets per share amounted to approximately HK$0.71
(as at 31st March 2019: approximately HK$0.80). Dividend and basic
loss per share were approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.029 respectively
(as at 31st March 2019: approximately HK$0.01 and basic loss per share
HK$0.038 respectively).

The Group was technically in breach of a covenant under a loan agreement
with a bank (the “Bank”), as the Group’s tangible net worth were less than
that required by the Bank. As at 31st March 2020, the outstanding bank
loan from the Bank was approximately HK$13,000,000. As at the date of
this report, the Bank has not made any demand for immediate repayment
of the loan. If the loan would be demanded for immediate payment,
the Directors are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to repay the loan without hindering the operating cash flow for
several months.
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The Group generally finances its operation by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong. As at
31st March 2020, the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts, loans
and trade finance from banks totalling approximately HK$104 million (as at
31st March 2019: approximately HK$111 million), with an unused balance
of approximately HK$36 million (as at 31st March 2019: approximately
HK$36 million). The Directors believe that the Group’s existing financial
resources are sufficient to fulfill its current commitments and working
capital requirements.

Capital Structure

As at 31st March 2020, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$68 million (as at 31st March 2019: HK$75 million),
which were in the form of short-term bank loans (including short-term
loans and trade finance) for financing the daily business operations and
future development plans. The majority of the Group’s bank borrowings as
at 31st March 2020 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. These short-
term loans and trade finance were secured by the Company’s corporate
guarantees of around HK$96 million and the leasehold properties in
Singapore and Portugal (as at 31st March 2019: HK$103 million). During
the year under review, the Group’s borrowings bore interest at rates
ranging from 3.1% to 5.5% per annum (as at 31st March 2019: ranging
from 1% to 5.4% per annum).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31st March 2020, the Group’s gross borrowings repayable within one
year, amounted to approximately HK$100 million (as at 31st March 2019:
approximately HK$96 million). After deducting cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$29 million, the Group’s net borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$71 million (as at 31st March 2019: approximately
HK$64 million). The total equity as at 31st March 2020 was approximately
HK$141 million (as at 31st March 2019: approximately HK$159 million).
Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio, based on net borrowings to
total equity, increased to 50.4% (as at 31st March 2019: 40.6%).
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
Most of the Group’s transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Chinese Renminbi and United States dollars. Given that the exchange rate
of Hong Kong dollars against Chinese Renminbi has been and is likely to
be under control and that the Hong Kong Government's policy of pegging
the Hong Kong dollars to the United States dollars remains in effect, the
Directors consider that the risk facing by the Group on foreign exchange
will remain minimal and no hedging or other alternative measures have
been undertaken by the Group. As at 31st March 2020, the Group had no
significant risk exposure pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest
rates, currency swaps, or other financial derivatives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2020, the properties with carrying value of approximately
HK$14 million have been pledged to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group's subsidiaries in Singapore and Portugal.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2020.

Employment, Training and Remuneration Policy
As at 31st March 2020, the Group had a total of 376 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries. The Group
has developed its human resources policies and procedures based on the
performance, merits and market conditions. Remuneration packages are
normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other
staff benefits include provident fund contributions, medical insurance
coverage and performance-based bonuses (based on the Group's financial
results as well as individual performance).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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Executive Directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 59, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Chairman of the Company
(the "Chairman”). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in Business
Administration from Newport University in the United States. Dr. Hung
has more than 39 years of experience in the electronics industry, and is
responsible for the Group's strategic planning and corporate policies.
He is keen on nurturing the second generation to strengthen the overall
corporate management.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (the “"HKEIA") and
was nominated as Honorary Vice-chairman of the HKEIA in 2015.

Dr. Hung is also a General Committee Member and the Group 20 Chairman
(Non-manufacturing Il: Trading (Hong Kong Trade Services Council)) of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and the Independent Manager of Chan
Sui Ki (La Salle) Primary School.

He was appointed by the City University of Hong Kong as Honorary
Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the Industry Co-operative
Education Centre, and served as a member of the Electronics and
Telecommunications Training Board (2013 — 2019), Information Technology
Training and Development (2015 — 2017) and Innovation and Technology
Training Board (2017 — 2019) of Vocational Training Council. Dr. Hung is
the husband of Ms. Yeung Man Yi Beryl, the deputy chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. He is also the elder brother of Hung Ying
Fung, an executive director of the Company.
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Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 58, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (the “Deputy
Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ”) of the Company.
With more than 39 years of experience in the electronics industry,
Ms. Yeung is responsible for the Group’s finance, administration and
internal control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing
and new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In
2006, Ms. Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration
from Lincoln University in the United States.

In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, Ms. Yeung was invited to be the Adjunct Professor
in the Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong
(2014-2015) and Advisory Committee (2010—-2014) of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industries. She is
the wife of the Chairman of the Company, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and
the sister of an executive director of the Company, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix.

Hung Ying Fung,

aged 56, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and both the computer and cosmetic
retail business development of the Group and has over 34 years of
experience in the electronics industry. In 2001, he was nominated as the
director of the Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company Limited.
Mr. Hung was nominated as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po
District Commerce and Industrial Liaison Committee (2014—2018). He is the
brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 57, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and business development
of the retail business in PRC and Asia Pacific region of the Group. He has
over 36 years of experience in the electronics and computer industry. He is
the brother of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Charles E. Chapman,

aged 71, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently
the independent non-executive director of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 595) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and a senior industry consultant for a number of overseas-based trade
fair organizers. He was the executive director of the HKEIA and managing
director of the HKEIA's subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong
Electronics Promotions Ltd. from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired.
Prior to joining HKEIA, Mr. Chapman worked for 12 years as economics
editor at the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and for 8 years as
business editor in a local English-language newspaper.

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 55, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Dr. Leung is
a qualified accountant and chartered secretary with over 32 years of
experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He holds
the Doctor of Philosophy degree in Forensic Accounting and Auditing, the
Doctor of Philosophy degree in Management, the Doctor of Education
degree in Educational Management, a Doctor of Business Administration
degree, a Master of Professional Accounting degree, a Postgraduate
Diploma in Corporate Administration, a Bachelor of Commerce degree
majoring in Accounting, and a Diploma in Forensic Accounting. He is
an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, the Hong Kong Institute Secretaries and the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales. Dr. Leung is also an adjunct lecturer of
the Hong Kong University (SPACE).

Ku Wing Hong, Eric,

aged 64, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He obtained an
Honorary Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and a Diploma in Education
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979 and 1985 respectively.
He joined De La Salle Secondary School, NT in 1981 and was appointed
Principal of the School in September 2004. He retired in August 2016 at
the age of 60. Mr. Ku has been the Vice-chairman of the Tai Po & North
District Secondary Schools Area Committee of Hong Kong Schools Sports
Federation (the “Federation”) and the Chairman in the Federation’s Tai
Po & North District Competition Committee. He has also been the Vice-
chairman of the North District Secondary School Principals’ Association
and is currently a member of the Hong Kong Lasallian Education Council.
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Senior Management

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho,

aged 62, Senior Management

has been an executive director of the Company from June 2013 to 31st
March 2016. Despite his resignation as an executive director of the
Company, he is the director of five subsidiaries of the Company, namely
Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, MBM Properties (Proprietary)
Limited (formerly known as AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited),
Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited ("Mantech Electronics”),
Mobicon International Limited and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.
Mr. Moutinho has been appointed as an advisor to the Portuguese diaspora
by Portuguese World Council since February 2014.

Mr. Moutinho is responsible for the business operations of the Group in
South Africa and Portugal. He joined the Group in December 2001 when
Mantech Electronics was acquired by the Group and became an executive
director of the Company in June 2013. Mr. Moutinho obtained his national
certificate in Electronics from the University of Johannesburg (formerly
known as Technikon Witwatersrand) in 1982 and matriculated at the
Johanneshurg Technical College in South Africa in 1977. He is a qualified
electrical technician engineer.

Wan Lam Keng,

aged 57, Senior Management

is the senior business manager of the Group. Ms. Wan joined the Group
in June 1988 and has over 31 years of experience in retailing and trading
business. She is responsible for the Group’s Urgent Requirement Service
division. She is the wife of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Tsoi Ho Yin,

aged 35, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of the
Company. He is responsible for the financial management of the Group.
Mr. Tsoi is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Tsoi joined the Group in September 2016. He has
more than 11 years of experience in auditing and accounting.
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Lam Sun Hung,

aged 51, Senior Management

is the marketing director of APower Holdings Limited. He obtained a
Master of Business Administration from University of Wales (Newport).
He has engaged in the IT industry for more than 34 years and has in depth
understanding on the market trend and market demand. He has earned
rich and solid experiences in the operation of products agentship and
distribution. He has taken part in the industry of environmental protection
and energy conservation and to lead the Group into the environmental
protection market. In recent years, Mr. Lam has explored the import agency
and wholesale business of cosmetic products, supplying the products
mainly to Hong Kong and Macau markets. Mr. Lam joined the Group in April
2002 and is focusing on the development of agent line product and solution
services business.

Hung Lok Lam, Joyce,

aged 30, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Videocom Technology (HK)
Limited. Ms. Hung joined the Group in August 2011 and is responsible
for overseeing the product development and brand management of wishh!,
and merchandising and marketing wide range of cosmetic products for the
customers of the Group. Ms. Hung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree in Psychology from The University of Hong Kong. She is the
daughter of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the
niece of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the niece of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Hung Lok Tin,

aged 29, Senior Management

is the business development manager of A Plus 2 Computer Limited.
Mr. Hung joined the Group in January 2013 and is responsible for
overseeing the product development, merchandising and brand management
of L1VideoCom . Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor of Asia-Pacific Studies degree
from the Australian National University and he was the Patron member
of the HKEIA (2015-2017). He is the son of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure
and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the nephew of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the
nephew of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Chooi Chow Sek, Jasmond,

aged 53, Senior Management

is the general manager of Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. in
Malaysia and Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. in Singapore. He
graduated from Federal Institute of Technology in Malaysia with a Diploma
in Electronic Engineering. Mr. Chooi joined the Group in July 2001 and
has over 28 years of experience in distribution of electronic components
and test and measurement instruments. He is currently responsible for the
overall operation of these two companies covering Southeast Asia.
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Corporate Governance Report
AR IRk

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to principles of corporate governance practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year under review except for the
following deviations:

According to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company (the “INEDs") are not
appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law
111 of the Company's Bye-laws.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code provides that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws of the
Company provides that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman will not be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire. As continuation of the services of the
Chairman and the Deputy Chairman is a key factor to the successful
implementation of any long term business plan, the Board believes
that present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors have confirmed that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year under
review.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and senior management against any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, expenses and any proceedings brought against them, arising
from the performance of his/her duties as director or senior management
(as the case may be) of the Company. The current policy has been renewed
and shall be under constant review.
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Board of Directors

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share
value.

The Board comprises a total of seven directors, with four executive
directors, namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and CEQ), Mr. Hung Ying Fung, and Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Allix and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Charles E. Chapman,
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules. Ms. Yeung
Man Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure. She is also the
sister of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Mr. Hung Ying Fung is the brother of
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Group. To enhance the standard of corporate
governance, the Company also adopted a board diversity policy on 29th
August 2013. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 17
to 21 of this annual report.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business
strategies and annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group
and oversight of the management. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board such that the Board acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed and approved by the Board before
execution. All directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and adequate and reliable information is given to the Board in a
timely manner.

The CEO is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The
CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group's
operations.
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The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting at the request of
any one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to all
directors. The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not less
than three days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to clearly
understand and make informed decisions on all matters to be raised,
discussed and resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary
who is also the financial controller of the Group shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. The directors shall have
full access to information on the Group and arrangement has been in place
to enable directors to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.

Four regular Board meetings of the year under review were scheduled
in advance at approximately quarterly intervals; the other two Board
meetings had been convened in relation to the discussions of two
continued connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The directors can attend meetings in person or by means of a
conference telephone or other communications facilities in accordance
with Bye-law 136 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The senior management is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control
and corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Group’s performance and financial position.

During the year, the Company had arranged an in-house training session
to the directors on the implications of late disclosure of inside information
from recent cases. In addition, the directors had attended external courses,
conferences and luncheons organized by various organisations to further
enhance their capacities to carry out director’s duties.

The directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial
updates and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and
regulatory developments.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

There is no specific term of the appointment of INEDs. However, they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws
of the Company. This deviates from the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code
which requires that non-executive directors be appointed for specific terms
subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Board considers
that this current practice is fair and reasonable and does not intend to
change this practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting. Currently, two directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

According to Bye-law 117 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members may,
at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office provided that
the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of removing a
director shall contain a statement of the intention so to do and be served
on such director not less than 14 days before the meeting and at such
meeting, such director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for his/
her removal.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 29th August 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

a1 to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in corporate governance reports.

Remuneration Committee and Directors’
Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on
20th February 2006 to assist the board of directors of the Company to
oversee the remuneration packages of and determine the remuneration
structure of the executive directors and senior management of the
Group. Its current members are Dr. Leung Wai Cheung, Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference including the duties of
the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

With effect from the fiscal year 2019/2020, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the management bonus package mechanism of executive directors
which provides that the aggregate amount of management bonuses
payable to all directors in respect of any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits
of the Group is HK$2 million or above but is less than HK$5 million; and
(i) 10% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group
is HK$5 million or above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee
also approved to delegate the authority to the Chairman of the Group to
determine the distribution level on the management bonus payout to all
executive directors and each executive director shall entitle to not less
than 10% of the aggregate amount of the management bonuses.
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On 26th February 2020, the Remuneration Committee resolved that the
management bonus package mechanism of executive directors for the
fiscal year 2020/21 shall be maintained at same level as that for the fiscal
year 2019/20.

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the executive
directors and senior management whose names appear in the
“Directors” and Senior Management's Profile” section for the year:

RZZEZZF_A=-+A  FHEESHIRN
TR /R —FUHRFERTESEERRL
MESHEIEREZRIR=_Z—h /T =F
FRBFEHR—KFE -

TRILEI EERSREREBHN ] —H2H
TEERERERENAFEZMER

HK$ Number of persons
BT AE
500,001 — 1,000,000 2
1 —-500,000 12
Total number of persons 48 A £ 14

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 28th
March 2012 to lead the process for the appointment of directors of
the Company. Its current members are Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure,
Mr. Charles E. Chapman and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung. Dr. Hung is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference including
the responsibilities of the Nomination Committee have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Nomination Committee
was amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted a policy for the nomination of the
directors (the “Nomination Policy”). According to the Nomination Policy,
the Nomination Committee will use the following non-exhaustive factors,
including reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest, the
Company's board diversity policy and the independence of the candidate
(in the case of independent non-executive Directors) as reference in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate. The Nomination
Committee shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for consideration
by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by
Board members. The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility and final
decision on all matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The minutes of the Nomination Committee meeting was tabled to
the Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 18th April 2001
to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
system of the Company.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Audit Committee was
amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for
noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.

During the meetings held in the year under review, the Audit Committee
had performed the following work:

(i) reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year
ended 31st March 2019 and the interim results and the financial
reports for the six months ended 30th September 2019;

(i) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit
on the operations and performance of the Group;

(iii) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules

and other statutory compliance;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems of the Group;

(v) reviewed the external auditors’ management letter and management's
response; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the 2019/2020
audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Company may declare dividend
according to the recommendation of the Board. The Company may in its full
discretion decide not to declare dividend due to various reasons, including
but not limited to maintaining or adjusting the capital structure and
reserving more capital to capture opportunities, etc. In deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(ii) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i)~ the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(iv) the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(vi) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(vii)  the shareholders’ and the investors' expectation and industry’s
norm;
(viii)  the general market conditions; and

(ix) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Attendance of Individual Directors

The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General
Meeting during the year under review is set out in the table below.
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Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Director EEng EZE8E BRZEEeE FWZEeeR RERZEE8E RREFAE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HEEELT 6/6 N/ATE A N/ATER 1 n
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BagrL 6/6 N/AT G F /1 N/ATRE R 11
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HRESTE 6/6 N/ATRE R N/AT @R N/AT @R 1/
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BERLE 6/6 N/ATiEHR N/ATER N/ATER 11
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group.

As at 31st March 2020, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 45 to 51
of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31st March 2020, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as
follows:

OB R R I 2 | AT

EERRAEANSEMRFERREEBERATR
AR B EBARN 2 HTEHEK -

R-F-ZFE=ZA=+—8 EFITHNEHE
MEBRTHAEHHBERAEERELEARRA]
FEKEZEN  RESRHRKEELERER
RAITBERE

SNEBAZ BB Y B S R SR ZBAE 2 B SN ARER
BB EEN B 2B IUZBARER -

HE_Z_ZF=A=+—RILFEZHEEHH
BRELHEFEAMEFEMBERADEL - W
RETGRIT 2 AR RBFEAG LER - BX
ZEGCMESFEEE  RIBRITZARRK
RBFAE LEBRFEETMEBAERAAS
ZAUNSIE 3 G

1% B0 T <
BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HBILFE  XHFTE
RAZEMBEASAMERAERIR2HE 0
™~

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered iRt iR % e ENER
HK$'000

FETT

Audit services RIS 880
Non-audit services — Interim review IERZEUIRAS — P EAZE 220
1,100
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and the review of their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to identify, analyze, evaluate and mitigate risk
exposures that may impact the continued efficiency and effectiveness of
our operation or prevent it from achieving its business objectives.

The risk management process of the Group is coordinated and facilitated
by our compliance officer. The objectives of risk management are to, inter
alia, enhance the Company’s governance and corporate management
processes as well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable
levels of risks and losses. The risk management process of the Group
will involve, inter alia, (i) an annual risk identification exercise which
involves assessment of the consequence and likelihood of risks (including
documenting those of potentially high impact) and the development
and/or review of risk management plans for mitigating such risks; (ii)
testing of documented risk management procedures at approval intervals;
and (iii) providing our staff and other stakeholders appropriate and
reasonable access to relevant information and training in the area of risk
management.

Our internal control staff has performed an assessment on our internal
control systems including reviewing guidelines and policies which are
implemented through our operational process and the results of the same
has been reported to the Board. An internal audit function is set up to
examine key issues in relation to the financial and operational matters/
practices and to provide its findings and any recommendations for
improvement to the Audit Committee.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information,
procedures have been implemented by the Group to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of information are strictly prohibited.

During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Board, as supported by the
Audit Committee, our compliance officer and internal audit function,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls, for the mentioned period,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources in respect thereof.
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Investor Relations and Communications

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board; (ii) updated company news and published announcements of
the Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) different means are opened to the shareholders and
investors for communication channel such as (a) by mail to the Company's
head office at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po
Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong; (b) by telephone at (852) 2397 6628; or (c) by
fax at (852) 2397 0339.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises
the Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that he has complied with
all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Right

(i) Procedures by which shareholders can convene a
Special General Meeting (the “SGM”)
The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company upon
which all calls or other sums then due have been paid, forthwith
proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of the
original deposit.
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(ii) Procedures for putting forward proposals at General
Meetings (the “GM”)
Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or who are
no less than 100 shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed by all of
the shareholders concerned and be deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend
Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the GM in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the GM in case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board of Directors to
include the resolution in the agenda for the meeting provided
that the shareholders concerned have deposited a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.

(iii) Shareholders’ enquiries
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing with contact information of the requisitionists
and deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road
East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents
During the year under review, there has no change in the Company's
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws.

(ii)

(iii)
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The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31st March 2020.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic parts,
components and equipment and computer products and mobile accessories
and trading of cosmetic products.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong), is set out in the sections “CEQ’s Statement” on pages 7 to 10 and
“Business review” on pages 11 to 14, of this Annual Report respectively.
An analysis using financial key performance indicators, a discussion of the
Group’s environmental policies and performance, and its compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group as well as an account of the key relationships with its stakeholders
are set out in the sections “Five Year Financial Summary” on pages 151
and 152, “Revenue and Segment Information” on pages 99 to 106, and
“Major Customers and Suppliers” of this Report of the Directors on page
40 respectively. The environmental, social and governance report of the
Group will be published separately no longer than three months after the
publication of this annual report. The above discussions form part of this
Directors’ Report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 52 and 53 respectively.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$1 million, which was paid on 19th December 2019.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$1 million for the year ended 31st March 2020.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

EFEURENF2HE ERESRHEEAR
REARB D REMBAR (Sl AEH DA
ECE_RE-A-THUEFEZEBRRES
AT -

EPE 3

AR RAERAT - HTHEANEERE
BEERSHETEN  THRESEEHERR
FREM - ARBRCMRZET -

REBRFERNLRERRIBEE D 2 RBSFTEHN
ARA MBS MRS

305 Il

REBERIE R BED (BB LD 56225 )KiRSZ
REMBR 2P BEEBGRBED FIEHNANFERSET
BEBI0BZ [1THREBHRE I RENEEFUE
Z [ EBERE] - FRBRMBETIEEELNSD
- AEBEIRBRERRBOmEEETHA
E@ﬁéﬁwamﬁﬁﬁié&/ﬁﬁw SULA R B
F=AEENEZEREMOHEL - 5 BIFH R FE151
B RE1 52E2f£¢ﬁh%$ﬁigj F99HZE %106
B WaEmknHBER I RFNBEZESS
[FZ2FP REER IR - REBERIRE - iA&
EVRMEBRAFERTIEZ=EARBL T -
P B AEReREN—ILD o

IR
AEEHE-_T-_TF=-A=-+—BIEFEC¥
BEORENERENEDEZGAEBRRAGE
2EWER -

BEECERTHRESR
1,000,000/8 7T * BB EERN =
+ABIRN °

ERBOSBIL - A%
T-AF+=A

é%k%»ﬁﬁaifyfji B=1+—HBI1It%
EREKRES A%0.58 L - A& $£1,000,0007%

JG ©



Report of the Directors
Ol

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 10th August
2020 to 13th August 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to ascertain the right to attend
the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 7th August 2020.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 19th August
2020 to 21st August 2020, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected, and the final dividend will be paid on 2nd September 2020. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on 18th August 2020.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Donations
No charitable donations was made by the Group during the year ended 31st
March 2020.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company's listed shares during the year ended 31st March 2020.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Mr. Hung Ying Fung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric are required to retire
by rotation under the Company’s bye-laws and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure who did not enter into any service contract with the Company)
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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Share Option Scheme

On 8th August 2003, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the”"New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the eligible persons
may be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) upon and subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the
New Share Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme is in line with
current Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Since the adoption, no options have been granted under the New Share
Option Scheme up to the date of this report. The New Share Option
Scheme expired on 7th August 2013.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities

As at 31st March 2020, the interests and short paositions of each director
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“"SF0")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
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EEnE BRr/ KR B AR RXEER ARER Bk
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Long = 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
Rl EE L TR {Note a)

(Bff5Ea)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long = 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
BEER L HE (Note a)

(FMi3ta)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 26,990,000 S S 13.50%
HEE R A e
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long = 30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(continued)
Notes:
(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Dr.

Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Yeung Man Yi,
Beryl. Accordingly, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were
deemed to be interested in 90,000,000 shares of the Company under SFQ. Dr. Hung
Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same
interest and duplicated each other.

(b) These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company owned as to
50% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Wan
Lam Keng. Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were
deemed to be interested in 30,000,000 shares of the Company under SFO. The
interests of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of
the same interest and duplicated each other.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Company had adopted a Code
of Conduct regarding directors’ transactions in securities of the Company
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable
enquires with the directors of the Company, the Company was of the view
that the directors had complied with the said Code of Conduct throughout
the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2020, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

F2 BB R K oAt N b A AR 2 W) AR
hBER Z HE AR

RZEZZEF=RA=+—H  BARRESHA
B THALT(RBEEARRESRKEZITHA
B)RARBIRMD RABRERODTEEREES K
B I EEXVER SR 2 ]399 BB Z A A R AR R B
BoiEAR

Number of shares

igvip 4=
Long/short Beneficial Family
Name position owner interests Percentage
BB A "R/ KE BERERA FERER Bot
MZ2B Holding Limited Long 90,000,000 = 45%
e (Note (a))
(MI3E(a)
Bestmark Management Limited Long 30,000,000 = 15%
S (Note (b))
(MI3E(b)
Ms. Wan Lam Keng Long S 30,000,000 15%
EMBL L 5o (Note (b))
(B 5% (b))
Notes: Mz -
(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's (a) HR2HEERTIBETHRAERRARBERESZ
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. s | —EiMtEE(a) ©
(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's  (b) B2HM [EBERFETHRABRBRARERESRZ

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. The interests of Bestmark Management
Limited and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated
each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2020, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the Group sold less than 10% of its goods to its five
largest customers.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:

— the largest supplier 12%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 25%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in,
apart from the Group's business, any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements also constituted continuing connected transactions
and connected transactions for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of such connected transactions are as follows:
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions

The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from
M-Bar Limited (“M-Bar”). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned
as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive
directors of the Company.

1.

(a)

On 30th September 2016, Mobicon Holdings Limited
("MHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tenancy agreement with M-Bar to renew
the lease agreements in respect of Private Car Parking
Space Nos. 6, 7, 24 and 25 on 3rd Floor, Private Car Parking
Space Nos. 6 and 13 on 4th Floor, Units 1-11 on 7th Floor,
Units 1-4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd Floor, New
Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King Fuk
Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (collectively, the
“Properties”) for a term of three years from 1st October
2016 to 30th September 2019 at an aggregate monthly
rental of HK$234,000.

On 1st March 2017, MHL entered into a supplementary
agreement with M-Bar, the monthly rental was adjusted
to HK$117,000 from 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018. On
1st March 2018, MHL further entered into a supplementary
agreement with M-Bar, the monthly rental was remained at
HK$117,000 from 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019.

On 30th September 2019, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreements
in respect of the lease agreements in respect of Units
1=11 on 7th Floor, Units 1-4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9
on 23rd Floor, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road
East, 104 King Fuk Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong for a term of one year from 1st October 2019 to
30th September 2020 at an aggregate monthly rental of
HK$187,000.

The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the
Group and ancillary use.

B 5 ()
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)
(continued)

1.

(b)

On 30th September 2016, MHL entered into a tenancy
agreement with M-B-ar to renew the lease agreement in
respect of Portion of 1st Floor and 3rd Floor, Efficiency
House, 35 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong for a term of three years commencing from 1st
October 2016 to 30th September 2019 at an aggregated
monthly rental of HK$135,000.

On 1st March 2017, MHL entered into a supplementary
agreement with M-Bar, the monthly rental were adjusted
to HK$67,500 from 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018. On
1st March 2018, MHL further entered into a supplementary
agreement with M-Bar. The monthly rental was remained
at HK$67,500 from 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019.

On 30th September 2019, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreement in
respect of Portion of 3rd Floor, Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau
Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of one
year commencing from 1st October 2019 to 30th September
2020 at an aggregated monthly rental of HK$45,000.

The leased premises are used as storage with ancillary
office (in respect of Portion of 1st Floor) and godown for
storage (in respect of 3rd Floor).

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting
to HK$2,499,000 (Note 29) to M-Bar.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

BH AL 5 ()
PR 5 ()

1.

(%)
(b)

RZZ—XR"EAA=1TH  MHL
RBEBNEFTEEABHBRE
BIXANEIEEPHRDIRIEZ
EHEHTEM-Bars] . —HHEE W
# BB T AETA—8
BRE-FT-AFALA=THLAE
BHi=4 - A& 1350008 7T ©

R-ZZE—+F=ZA—H MH
EM-Bars] Ll e HE  RZF
—+tFEMAE—BE_ZT—NE=
A=+—H AH#AEZE67500
BIL - RZZE—NF=A—8
MHLEEM-Bar B R] SZ i Fe e * 1A
- \FWA—HE-Z—Ah
F=ZA=+—H " AMAE67500

BT e

RZZE—NAFNLA=1+H  MHL
RBEBNETEEABHBRE
BIFEREEEPHH 2 ERE
HHEM-Bard] L — M A E R
A —_ZT—NAF+A—BER
TE-EFAAZTRIEAH—
F + AHHA $£45,0005 7T ©

ZEMADEREFE RSB
AE(GEBEFABOME)UARE
B (E3gms) Bk -

FR - AKEEDRM-Bark (S
2,499,000/ 7T (MI5E29) °



Report of the Directors
Ol

Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) consider
these continuing connected transactions have been conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal commercial
terms and continuation of these transactions in the future will be
beneficial to the Group.

These continuing connected transactions have also been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company who have confirmed
that such continuing connected transactions have been (a) entered
into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) conducted on normal commercial terms; and (c) entered into
in accordance with the terms of the lease agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The independent
non-executive directors of the Company have also confirmed that the
aggregate value of the transactions were within the respective maximum
amounts as agreed with the Stock Exchange.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed to the Board that these
continuing connected transactions have received the approval of the Board
and have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the tenancy
agreements governing the transactions. The auditors of the Company have
also confirmed that the aggregate value of the transactions were within
the respective maximum amounts as agreed with the Stock Exchange.
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Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$69,206,000 (2019: HK$74,210,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 151 and 152.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th June 2020
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T A% BCh e

My gt FH A RS
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
MOBICON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mobicon
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 52 to 150, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Inventory valuation and allowance

A B0 8 M

ES R

BB EELRERMOBLIN - BAHK
BRAMBRRNBHBABENPE - ELF
FRERMEHEREAMBRRRLABRE
ETREN - RMTEHELERRHEBOE
H o

Refer to Note 2.12, Note 4(a) and Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

H2HEE MR MRMFE2.12 - MiFE4a) R HHEE18 -

We identified the valuation and allowance of inventories as a o
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with

the judgements associated with determining the amount of
allowances on inventories.

ENTEAREEEREVBRERBEEZ  NLETFERE .
SEERFTER MR - Rt RMBEFENGHEREERE
BERTEIE -

At 31st March 2020, the Group held inventories of approximately °
HK$166,032,000. As described in the accounting policies in Note
2.12 to the consolidated financial statements, inventories are

carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. As a result, °
management assesses the net realizable value of slow moving
stocks with reference to the stock ageing report. Stocks are °
written down to their net realizable value where this falls below
their cost. o

RZZE-_TFZA=+—H > BSE£EEEENEENA
166,032,000 7T ° FMAARE BT FS KM 5E2.12 2 & R IRRFR i
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Evaluating whether inventories were stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value at the reporting
date by comparing the sales prices of inventories
subsequent to the reporting date with their carrying
values as at 31st March 2020;

FREREAPREIFEEERFENR S _ZF
ZA=ZT—RAZEREEELER  TERRE BT
ERBERAERAISRFERE R 2RIEETIE

Evaluating analysis and assessment made by
Management with respect to slow-moving inventories;
and

EEEERFHTFEMEZON REE &

Checking for individual products that invoiced costs
have been correctly recorded; and
RESEGENERD FRCHCERZER &k

Assessing whether items in the inventory ageing report
were classified within the appropriate ageing category
by comparing individual items in the report with the
underlying documentation.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
Impairment of trade receivables

B W S 5 Rk )k VL

PR 5 HIH ()

Refer to Note 2.10, Note 3.1(b), Note 4(b) and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

BH2MEE VR MR FE2.10 - MIEE3.1(b) » M EEA(b) BB FE19

As at 31st March 2020, the Group had trade receivables
amounted to approximately HK$51,227,000 (net of provision for
impairment of approximately HK$1,432,000).
RZBEZZF=RA=+—H ' BXEBENERESERNA
51,227,000 7T ( E FNFR IR (B i 491,432,000/ 7T ) »

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit
matter due to the estimation of expected credit losses involved
a significant level of judgement by management to determine
the use of internal and external data from various sources to
establish the historical credit loss experience and to adjust this
experience for expected future changes, recognizing that these
factors are all subject to a certain level of uncertainty.
ENEEEREEER S REREELERAE - LURERE
TRZRO N RINPEIRRER - AEREBATEEREEL
B RARRTEHARRE D E L LARELARE  MZEEAZEER
RRAB—ERENTEEN - BitRMETEKE SRR
HEREREETEIE -

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
lifetime expected credit losses (“ECL") allowance for all trade
receivables. Accordingly, management grouped trade receivables
with similar credit risk characteristics and ageing profile. The
estimated ECL rates were based on historical credit loss rates for
different groups and adjusted to reflect the current and multiple
forward-looking information on macro-economic factors that
are considered relevant to determine the ability of customers
to settle the receivables in the future. Management also
assessed the sufficiency of the ECL estimation by considering the
subsequent settlement status, credit profile and on-going trading
relationships with the customers.
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Understanding, evaluating and validating the
key controls performed by management over the
impairment assessment process, in particular those
over the identification of impaired receivables and the
calculation of provisions according to the lifetime ECL
model; and

TE HERZEEREENRENGBEFREITH
FEEGREE - CHEH DR ERKIERRIE
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Evaluating management’s assessment of the historical
credit loss rates by sample checking inputs in respect
of the assumptions made, such as historical payment
records, correspondence on any disputes or claims with
the customers and subsequent records; and
FRMEIREPTERBAOEAZE - Pl RBER
i EEEPAUNNEFPRER AN BALE
MEBENDTE  FHEEEBYBEEEBEERYN
Al &

Understanding the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end, the
Group's on-going business relationships with the
relevant customers and past settlement history of the
customers through discussion with management; and

FRMATREETIR  WTHBRELERSESEAX
BEEKE SERNER . BEREEEERFHOF
BEBTREARAREAEPOBAERNER &

Checking the computation of the amount of provision
and evaluated the expected future changes in credit
risks in management’s assessment by sample checking
the inputs to the assumptions to external data sources;
and

BAMERRE R IAMRE N R A BUR N EBUE K
B ZEREEENTE R HERET MG
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Performing testing, on a sample basis, of the accuracy

of the trade receivables ageing report.
MR E EWE 5 RN RE S 2 5 2 o
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and The Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T A% B e

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T A% BCh e

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 30th June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EHEER

For the year ended 31st March 2020 Bl E —FE T F = H=+—HILFE

Revenue Wz 461,245 479,396
Cost of sales SHERY (358,614) (368,194)
Gross profit ES 102,631 111,202
Other income and net gains Hip g A Rz %58 6 3,969 3,787
Distribution and selling expenses SE R SNE B (36,104) (39,463)
General and administrative expenses —RRTHERER (65,364) (70,587)
Operating profit 4 RS | 5,132 4,939
Finance costs Bl& B AN 8 (3,567) (3,181)
Profit before income tax BT E R AR 1,565 1,758
Income tax expense Frigfif s 9 (4,814) (4,672)
Loss for the year FNEE 7 (3,249) (2,914)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE(E (E1R) %A
Equity holders of the Company AAREREBA (5,729) (7,690)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR RE S 2,480 4,776
(3,249) (2,914)
Loss per share attributable to FARRBERFEA

the equity holders of the Company (S EREE
during the year

— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — BN BN ) 10 (3.84)

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial R EEFHIERGAE M BREWITNHE -
statements.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

o 2 I WAL

For the year ended 31st March 2020 B2 —E - FF = A=+—HItFE

Loss for the year

FAEIE

Other comprehensive income/(expense)  EH2EK A (FX)

Item that may be reclassified HIEA B HIEE
subsequently to profit or loss HBwm 2 HE

Currency translation differences: ERiREERE

— Subsidiaries — AT

Item that will not be reclassified HEETEFMHER
subsequently to profit or loss B2 EA

Revaluation gain/(loss) on property, plantand  #1% - WE M &
equipment ZEfHEs (F1E)

Other comprehensive expense, Hih2AEAX
net of tax (BEMREIE)

Total comprehensive expense 2 HEBX AR

Total comprehensive (expense)/income EE2E (RS, IA
attributable to: A

Equity holders of the Company PAWNSIL SRS SFE N

Non-controlling interests FEPE R A A

(2,914)

(11,492)

(157)

(17,376) (11,649)

(20,625) (14,563)

(16,166) (14,834)
(4,459) 21

(20,625) (14,563)

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR BN DL

As at31st March 2020 R=—ZE=-FF=F=+—H

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M RENEE 14 217,314
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 14 11,755
Intangible assets B AE 16 63
Investment properties REME 15 4,518
Goodwill S 16 17
QOther receivables H e Y 0B 3,360
47,181
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 18 166,032
Trade receivables FEUE ZEETN 19 51,227
Other receivables and deposits Hip el E K igd 29(b) 12,974
Current income tax recoverable a] Yy Bl BNEA PR SR m
Cash and bank balances He NIBT4ES 20 28,830
259,174
Total assets EEHAE 306,355
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables e B SRR 21 31,331
Other payables and accruals HihENZRIB R ESER 29(c) 15,140
Contract liabilities AHBE 3,338
Loan from a shareholder AR E = 22 32,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 1,796
Finance lease liabilities HEHEAR 24 -
Short-term bank loans RHAIRTTE R 23 67,586
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTIS TR aE 1,192
158,383
Net current assets REEEEE 100,791
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZERADERE 147,972

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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31,733

260,075

299,072

27,696
12,899
2,434
21,245
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75,138
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120,119
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

As at31st March 2020 R=—ZE-FF=F=+—H

Non-current liabilities kRBERE

Deferred tax liabilities ELRBEAE 25 -
Lease liabilities HEHE 14 -
Finance lease liabilities BEMEAE 24 28
6,488 28
Net assets EERE 141,484 159,088
Capital and reserves attributable AATERIZTEA
to the equity holders of GRS R
the Company
Share capital &N 26 20,000 20,000
Reserves & 86,284 104,450
106,284 124,450
Non-controlling interests FERER 35,200 34,638
Total equity RSB 141,484 159,088

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for #RAMBEHREREN T _TFA=-tHE=ESF
issue by the Board of Directors on 30th June 2020 and signed on its behalf ~ &#ERRENZ - TH NI EERREZEE

by: =
HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
HulE m8E
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
FiE B L ERITEARH

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR R

For the year ended 31st March 2020 HE — T T F=A=+—HIFE

Balance at 315t March 2018 R=E-\§=A=1-H
LB 20000 16,706 800 (6923 523 106271 122107 26043 168,150
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 REHEEY FHE 0 E9%
ez 5% - - - - - (623) (623) (144) (967)
Balance at 1t April 2018 REB-\EMA-Bz&s 2000 16,706 800  (6923) 523 10548 121284 25899 167183
Total comprehensive (expensel/income AR E(FR) /RALE
for the year - - - 6% (157) (890 (14834 m (14563
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-EHBAR - - - - - - - 5776 5776
Capital injection from non-controlling EERER S
interests - - - - - - - 269 2692
Release of revaluation reserve upon % BERAENER
depreciation of property, EREGE
plant and equipment - - - - (142) 142 - - -
Dividends of the Company: FRARE:
2018 final dividend “E-\ERERE - - - - - (10000 {1,000 - (1000
2019 interim dividend “E-hERERE - - - - - (1000 {1,000/ = {1,000]
Balance at 31st March 2019 WoE-nE
ZA=t-RAZER 20000 16,706 800 (139100 494 95900 104450 34638 159,088
Representing: HER:
2019 final dividend “I-hERERE 1,000
Others £ 94,900
9,300
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HeREmEER

For the year ended 31st March 2020 HE —ZE T F=A=+—HIFE

Balance at 1st April 2019 RIE-NEMA-AzER 0000 16,706 800 (139100  4%4 B0 104450 34638 159,088
Total comprehensive (sxpense)fincome M2 E(FR) /WA LS
for the year - - - (1053 % B729) 16166 (4459 (20,625)
Acquisition of subsidiaries e =N - - - - - - - 5021 5021
Release of revaluation reserve upon % BERRENERER
depreciation of property, plant and EfhiiE
equipment - - - - (54 5t - _ _
Dividends of the Company: KRARE:
2019 final dividend “E-NERERE - - - - - (1000 {1,000/ - (100)
2020 interim dividend “ECEERERS - - - - - (1000 {1,000/ - (100)
Balance at 31st March 2020 R-B-Bf¥=B=1-R

28 20000 16,706 800  (4442) 4995 88225 86280 3”00 141484
Representing: HER:
2020 final dividend “TIRERERS 1,000
(thers Hih 87225

88,225

Note: B 5E

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of
subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took

place on 18th April 2001.

BARBEAEAARCHTEBRZEE  SRE_TT—
FUA+N\BETZEARBRBHEZHBRFRAMN

FREEZBIME 2 FOER -

BERBEEERAT - —S-2FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBleiigR

For the year ended 31st March 2020 &%=

—E-EF=AST-ALEE

Cash flows from operating activities REEBELZHERE
Net cash generated from operations KERBEE R 27
Overseas income tax paid ERIBINTIS R
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEENEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BBNESHER
Net cash generated from operating KeXBEEZESFE
activities
Cash flows from investing activities REEFHELZREFTE
Interest received B E
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BELERE
equipment 14
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - WER&E
plant and equipment FriS k18
Purchase of intangible assets BEmRFEE
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WHEHB AT ZES
subsidiaries T F R
Net cash used in investing activities RETZHEB RS FE
Cash flows from financing activities RS EEBELE RS HE
Interest paid EARAFE
Dividends paid to the Company's BIRTARRBREZLE

shareholders
Capital injection from non-controlling
interests
Loan from a shareholder
Repayments of short-term bank loans
Repayments of finance lease liabilities
Repayments of lease liabilities
Proceeds from short-term bank loans

IR ERIEE

BRERER

B HIRITER
EEREHEAR
ERHEERE
FEHIRITE RS TR

Net cash used in financing activities

BETDPAREFR

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

23,155
(3,769)

254

(3,567)

(2,000)

10,755
(415,769)
(8,246)

408,557

(10,270)

25,689
(4,788)
(196)
37

(8,777)

127

(5,884)

(14,295)

(3,181)

(2,000)

2,692
21,245
(565,286)
(14)

541,558




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HeBlemER

For the year ended 31st March 2020 Bl E —E T F = H=+—HI-FE

Net (decrease)/increase in ReERRESEEY

cash and cash equivalents CR2), /g hnE5E (283) 1,461
Cash and cash equivalents FMzHERReEEY

at beginning of the year 31,733 28,251
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EX @ &) g2 (2,620) 2,021
Cash and cash equivalents FR2ESRESEEY

at end of the year 31,733
Analysis of balances of cash and BeRASZEEY

cash equivalents: HEER DT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 31,733

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok S 5 A M i

2.1

General Information

Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading
and distribution of electronic parts, components and equipment
and computer products and mobile accessories and trading of
cosmetic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are set out in the Company's annual report.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") and disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

2.1

— &
BRAEEERA T (ART ) REH
BAR(GH [ AEEDIERFERR
SMBETEN  THRESREKES
RFWEMN - ARBEIMAZ T -

ARRRBEAREAREERFEZLM
R RERRBERIGF - R FERE
REZLEME 2 AN AR B FR o

ARABRNE-STE-—FAALARE
BAMERSMABRAA([BRM]) £
e

BRBEHIN  FREMBERRAT
B (FETIIIE -

ERGFHBORME
RENSRAREERARAZIEES
HEARSIMT - BBERAN - kF
BER G 2 MEE SR -

AEBZGEMBHRRIDBREMBEER
ZEEMBHRELEAN([EEMBREE
A ) REBEADRGEI(8E622% ) 2 HEM
EMGRE - HEMBHERTIIBREBEELK
AERGBHE YERRAFEINERZY
X BEERBARKREMEZEMR/E
HIERT °

RENABRMBRELENREZRS
MBERE  AERETEXREMA
e BERENBEERAAREEHBER
ZERRRELHE - S REREE H E X
REMZBE  IBRRRMGAHEERH
BHREEEATE Z BBNHTARE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B T 5 A M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2

Policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1
Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretation to existing (a)

standards effective for annual periods beginning on 1st April 2019,
relevant to the Group's operation and adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Detailed impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 16 is disclosed in
Note 2.2 below. The adoption of the other amended standards and
interpretation did not have a significant impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok S 5 A M i

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretations which have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning on 1st April 2019 and have not been
early adopted:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKAS 39,  Hedge Accounting'
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concession®

Conceptual Framework for ~ Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2020.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021.
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June 2020.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of
the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in
a position to state whether the above new HKFRSs will have a
significant impact on the Group's and the Company’s results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.2

(i)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Change in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
“Leases” on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1st April
2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2019 reporting
period, as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the
standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new leasing rules are therefore recognized in the opening
statement of financial position on 1st April 2019. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.25.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognized lease liabilities
in relation to leases which had previously been classified as
“operating leases” under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1st April 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1st
April 2019 range from 2.70% to 10.25% per annum.

Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the
following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics;

o accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease
term of less than 12 months as at 1st April 2019 as short-
term leases;

U reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are
onerous;

° excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the

right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

o using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

2

2.2

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao U 2 A P

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (continued) 2.2
The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is,
or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied
on its assessment made applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.

(ii)  Measurement of lease liabilities (ii)

FEFGHBRME 2

GRHEORZ B H) (8)

o REREABEE  REBEETD
FTEFFEEHRTENXLEEMEE -
MMz sBERMZATZZAH
mE » AEEKEBEEERAES SR
F17HEREB BEREMBREREZES)-
BEFS [ BEELCHERESHE EY
2P e

FTEHEEE

Operating lease commitments disclosed as RZE-NF=ZA=+—HEHERZ
at 31st March 2019 BT E R 18,008
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing FREREABRZEABAREEER
rate at the date of initial application M= AE{TRLIR (499)
Less: short-term leases recognized on a straight-line basis & : IREGEERR LRSS (6,467)
Add: finance lease liabilities recognized as m:R-—_=E—hF=A=+—HF
at 31st March 2019 RZBAREARE 42
Add: adjustments relation to reassessment of o ERBZEMMIEL 2 A%
lease liabilities 3,693
Lease liabilities recognized as at 1st April 2019 R-B-NAFHNA-HEERAZ
HEEE 14,777
Of which are: Hep
Current lease liabilities mEBHEaRE 7,110
Non-current lease liabilities ERBHEAE 7,667
14,777

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.2
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Change in accounting policies (continued)
Measurement of right-of-use assets

The recognized right-of-use assets are related to retail outlets,
office premises, warehouses and office equipment. The right-
of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March 2019.

Adjustments recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position on 1st April 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the
consolidated statement of financial position on 1st April 2019:

- right-of-use assets — increase by approximately
HK$14,766,000;

- property, plant and equipment — decrease by approximately
HK$31,000;

- finance lease liabilities — decrease by approximately
HK$42,000; and

- lease liabilities — increase by approximately
HK$14,777,000.

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor under operating leases as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 16.
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2.3
231

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of financial position respectively.
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2.3
231
(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognized in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.
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2.3
2.3.1
(b)

232

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.
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2.5
(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars (HK$), which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “general and administrative
expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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2.5
(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
end of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognized in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences
arising are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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2.5
(d)

2.6

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is classified to profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold properties,
are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at
fair value, representing open market value determined at each
financial year end by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss in “other income
and net gains”.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within
“other income and net gains” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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2.7

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold properties 25 to 60 years

Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.8
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.9. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets, which
represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the
Group's interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interests in the acquiree. Goodwill
is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

Licenses

Separately acquired licenses are shown at historical cost. Licenses
acquired in a business combination are recognized at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses.

Amortization methods and periods
The Group amortizes intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Licenses 3 years
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2.9

2.10
(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the category of those to
be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business mode! for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.10
(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (the “FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its debt
instruments as financial assets at amortized cost.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented
in other income and net gains together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are included in general and
administrative expenses.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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2.10
(d)

2.11

2.12

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
loss associated with its debt instruments carried at amortized
cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1 details
how the Group determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. For other
receivables, impairment is measured as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a
receivable has occurred since initial recognition, then impairment
is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. It excludes
borrowing costs. Costs of purchased inventories are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandize sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognized at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

Other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. See Note 2.10
for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
and other receivables for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2.16

2.17

2.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains
rights to receive consideration from the customer and assumes
performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services to
the customer. The combination of those rights and performance
obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability depending on
the relationship between the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and recognized as contract
assets if the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure
of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the contract
is a liability and recognized as contract liabilities if the measure of
the remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the
remaining rights.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortized
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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2.19

2.20

2.21

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are initially
measured at the fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and

U the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present
value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual
payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.21
(b)

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liahility where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2.22
(a)

(b)

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in independently administered
funds. The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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2.22
(d)

2.23

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognized as a liahility when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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2.24

(a)

(b)

(d)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of control to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when control over such
products is transferred, being when the products are delivered or
shipped, the customer has accepted the products and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers” acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location and the risk of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customers.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognized when the Group has received
deposits from the customers. The Group records these as other
payables and accruals in advance in the liahilities section of
the consolidated statement of financial position. Such contract
liability is recognized as revenue when such goods are delivered to
customers.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired receivables is recognized
using the original effective interest rate.

Service income, management fee and commission income are
recognized when the services are rendered.

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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2.25

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases

Accounting policy applied since 1st April 2019

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The
new policy is described below and the impact of the change in
Note 2.2.

Until 31st March 2019, leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

From 1st April 2019, leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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2.25

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Accounting policy applied since 1st April 2019 (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

° any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognized on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognized as expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to
make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2

2.25

FEFGHBORME 2

LiNAG )
H-Z-NFA—-—AEEHZEEE
(&)
HERAEREERNSHEXTUAMKA -
HELEEARME(ANEEZHE—K
BUBEBR)  EEEAABEAZERERE
AR BMERAMEAERULERER
TR LUGRR - W RIGTES AR E
REEERUEECEENTEAER
MBS 2 FIZEK -

HERBREIREAE RBEKAK ° &
ERANEHAERGETHE - UFE
HE HRAE A EHREZ EEFHAE -

EREEERKATE -
18 :

HBRATIE

. MERBEZYFTESHE

. RF1E BB Z AIE VR R ZE
MEMK  BEEANDKEZE
B

. ERRERRA © &

. ERAA

EREEE-—REREGQENBEHEEE

ERFERABERAREERE)FE

& o

Z
#r

EIE I EMAR 2 M RIRE RN B
THERAFX - RHIHERENS12EA
HUTZHEE -

AEBEREBAAZKEHEZHER
ATREGERNEHABRRBWA - B
TEREEHEMEL Z VIREERRA
SPARBEEZREE AR EHRIZ
HEWRAZAREEER BT - 818
HERERBEMEAABERGBR -
R EE LAY MY AEEF ]
HERBEARBZEEZGRET
AR -

BREKEERQAE - —2-2FFRH

85



86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok S 5 A M i

2.25

2.26

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Accounting policy applied before 1st April 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized
as a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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2.27
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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(a)
(i)

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. Group
treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China, South
Africa, Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars ("USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the foreign exchange
risk is not significant and the Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risk exposure should the need arise.
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3.1
(a)
(i)

(ii)

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1
Market risk (continued) (a)
Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the reporting
date to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities).

2020 k- Sl 23

If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD fWErat i ETRE

If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD 37 &% 5 Z 1 FHE

If Singapore dollar weakens against USD CERIEE v A |
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD WEFR T T HE
If South African Rand weakens against USD WEERELELRE
If South African Rand strengthens against USD WEEEELELHE
2019 “B-NE

It New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD fWErat i ETRE

If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD

If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD

If South African Rand weakens against USD

If South African Rand strengthens against USD

fi#h & B L ETIHE

(CERIEmzE I A |
i # TR R E
fif IR AR A
fif R A XA E

A R BB B )
o 8 L o R (42
AT E S ()

B % m ()

B8 AR ERFER AR E T
ER e RR Y QT (AEEAE
REEATEED) -

5% (462) -
-5% 462 -
5% (206) -
-5% 206 -
5% (139) -
-5% 139 -

Excluding retained profits

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to significant price risks during the years

ended 31st March 2020 and 2019.

* TEERFET

BT8R S
BHE_Z2_FTFR_F—-—NLF=A
=+ —HBLEEE AEBUTEMHERKR
B R -

ERAEEERAT - —2_TFEFRH
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREEHe)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 WMEBRBEEE)

(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) 5 R ()

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk (i) B RERNFEFRERE
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly REEBZFEEHRLEERGHITE
attributable to its interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings RITEE - REPFERLZEEEH
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest- AEBABHRSREMNXEAR - KE
rate risk. Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings B B EEZFFERERE M B HRRM 23
have been disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial BER o AN £ B IR I N A A AT I R E R IR
statements. The Group currently does not have any interest rate KR EBRE—EHERMXEAR -
hedging policies. However, management monitors interest rate WENAERERERBE RERFE@ER

exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRETHABHEMBEEFITIE K
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held SEBRAEHAINGEN(ERZEEEZY
constant, of the Group's profit before income tax (through the )RR EEREEEF R HIRE R
impact on floating rate borrowings) and the Group's equity. EBURE ©

2020 b Sl 23

Floating rate borrowings FEER

Floating rate borrowings FEEE

2019 “Z-NE

Floating rate borrowings FEEE 50 (376) -

Floating rate borrowings REEE (50) 376 -
* Excluding retained profits * TBEBFEH
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3.1
(b)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its financial assets
at trade receivables, other receivables and deposits, and cash and
bank balances. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, and cash and bank balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with cash deposits at banks since they are substantially deposited
at medium or large-sized listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties. The existing counterparties
do not have default in the past. Therefore, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected credit loss provision for impairment of
all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on nature of customer accounts and shared
credit risk characteristics.

3
3.1
(b)
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREEHe)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMERBEEEXE)

(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) =B R (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31st March 2020 and 2019 BIBEZEE RZZE_TFRZF—N
(on adoption of HKFRS 9) was determined as follows for trade FZA=Z+—H(RERE BT HEHmEE
receivables: BIZE95R18) < FEWE 5 IR S B REEE

e

Individual assessment &R EF4

Collective assessment ERET A
(based on due dates) (38 8)
0 to 60 days TE60H 48,505 (743)
61 to 120 days 61£120H 3,073 (129)
121 10 180 days 1211808 315 (52)
181 to 365 days 1812365H 533 (275)

52,659 (1.432)

Individual assessment RIS 100% 249 (249) -
Collective assessment - R
(based on due dates) (RBER)
0to 60 days ZF60H 1% 44,186 (249) 43,937
61 to 120 days 61£120H 14% 2,796 (399) 2,397
121 to 180 days 121£180H 21% 394 (84) 310
181 to 365 days 1812365H 97% 357 (348) 9
47,982 (1,329) 46,653
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3.1
(b)

Credit risk (continued)

to make contractual payments.

and 2019 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as follows:

At 1st April 2019

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMHEREEMe)

Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1 WMHEREEEE)
(b) =EmEE (&)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable BHESERSELZEWE 2 EIBHE
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable BT UAMEE - BBEWE AR 28
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a EaE(EPEE) REAREERNES
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure ERCERFGTEI R ARBER AN -

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31st March 2020 KRB _TFR_T—HAhF=A=1+—
AZREKEZEREEBEBERFIER
B HRIAT:

Provision B

Reversal [

Exchange difference I =R

At 31st March R=ZA=+—8

31st March — calculated under HKAS 39

ZA=1T—B-REFEEEL
SE395RATE 470

Opening loss allowance as at 1st April 2019

RZZ-NFHA—BZ2FNEBEEREE

— calculated under HKFRS 9 —RIEE B R & BRI F AT E 967
Provision B 1,058
Reversal ¢ (892)
Exchange difference (BN =78 (274)
At 31st March R=A=+—H 1,329

ERAEEERAT - —2_TFEFRH
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3.1
(b)

(c)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31st March 2020 and 2019, the Group has assessed that
the expected loss rate for other receivables and deposits was
immaterial. Thus no loss allowance for other receivables and
deposits was recognized.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
reserve barrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

At 31st March 2020, the Group had several short-term bank loans
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$67,586,000 (2019:
HK$75,138,000).
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMHEREEMe)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 WMBERBEEE)

(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) TEELE R (E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities rEEeREERABBERRS ABIRA
as at the reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted KRR RN E 2 BB RAT -

payments, was as follows:

2020 “ECEF
Trade payables ERESER 31,331 31,33 31,331
Other payables and accruals 4 et 308
REER 15,140 15,140 15,140
Loan from a shareholder BREER 32,000 32,000 32,000
Lease liabilities HEERE 452 8,003 12311 12,005
Short-term bank loans BHETER 3.66 68,271 68,271 67,586
154,835 159,119 158,062
2019 “I-NEF
Trade payables ERESER 27,6% - - - 27,69 21,69
Other payables and accruals — E fth {5008
REHER 12,899 - - - 12,899 12,899
Loan from a shareholder REER 2,245 - - - 21,245 2,245
Finance lease liabilities BEMERR 174 16 31 - - 47 42
Short-term bank loans BHETER 394 75,862 - - - 75,862 75,138

137,718 3 -

137,743 137,020

BERBEEERAT - —S-2FFH 95
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including loan from a shareholder
and short-term bank loans) less cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratios at
31st March 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Total borrowings BE®HE

R BB B )

25 A e 5 7

AEBEEREARY BIEAREREET
SECE YR R AR EIRH DR
RAHMEREEABERS  ARR
BREEREHELURES SRA -

RERFRABELERE  AEEAHE
ARFEKNZBREEE MERRREER

ARBEITHRAEEEERE ©

AEBREERBLRERER - It
ENEEHFERUEZBENE - &
BERDREEAB(BREREREE
HIRTEFORRE MRS EEYHE -

REEZRBEHIBZTE - RZT_TF
R—E-NF=A=+—RrBEGE
b

99,586
(28,830)

96,383
(31,733)

70,756

141,484 159,088

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RekReEEY
Net debt B FE

Total equity W 4R RE

Gearing ratio AEAMALE

50%
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3.3

3.4

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3
Fair value estimation 3.3
The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair

value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined

as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liahilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

(level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable input) (level
3).

At 31st March 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at the above fair value
measurements hierarchy.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Financial instruments by category 34
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the reporting date are as follows:

Financial assets SEMEE
At amortized cost; JRERSEA AN -

S0 5 R B 4 PR 42)

S P st
TERBEETESFAATFEIES 2
BMIA - SZHAEWT :

. HREEXRBEELEMS 2R
BOREAB)(E—H -

. BE—ReEsRmEN  TEE
(BN3Z (B8 sk R (A AR (B8 47
EBEMSrEENBEHAE
(B=#R) -

. WHKBERAETHEIEZE
EXBBERAECGIEEFAEE
ABE)(B=M) °

R-_E_ZETFLN_ZT-NF=ZF=+—
B A&EBTETMAZEERAFERNE
BRFEzZEMEEREE -

FN - F—HK FARE=ZH2EL
BENEASREESES -

ST ELER
RBEEH - 5oMT M2 EEE
m -

51,227
8,927
28,830

— Trade receivables —EWE SRR

— Other receivables and deposits — H thpERIE Rire

— Cash and bank balances — R RIRTTEH

Financial liabilities EA =N

At amortized cost: R SERR

— Trade payables —EREZER

— Other payables and accruals — E A R RUE &
FERTEA

— Lease liabilities —MHEAR

— Finance lease liabilities -MEHEEE

— Short-term bank loans —RHARITER

— Loan from a shareholder —RRER

31,331

15,140
12,005
67,586
32,000

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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(a)

(b)

©

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand
and competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of receivables

The provision of impairment for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses significant judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on
the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1(b).

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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5

Revenue and Segment Information
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows:

W 25 B 4 R R
ERRRZWEIT

Revenue W

Sales of electronic components,
automation parts and equipment NiEeR

Sales of computer products, mobile
accessories and service income

Sales of cosmetic products SHE b

HEE T - A8Art

HEEMER - FHEEMN
A AR HEA

281,481 285,984

97,073 94,321
76,685 99,091

461,245 479,396

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources; they have
also determined the operating segments based on these reports.
The Executive Directors have further considered the business
from product perspective and have assessed the performance of
three main business segments: (i) Electronic Trading Business
— Distribution of electronic components, automation parts and
equipment; and (ii) Computer Business — Retail sales of computer
products, mobile accessories, distribution of computer products
and provision of IT outsourcing and solution services and (iii)
Cosmetic and Online Retail Business — Retail and distribution of
cosmetic products through retail shops and online channels.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on segment results before corporate
expenses and finance costs.

ARRIEHEATES([RTES])
REIBRERRE -PITEFCHEHNA
SEZABRE  UFERRAESEER
B RENECRBEZEREEECLLED
M-HTEERERATE - FSEREE
BRFG=ZEAEIZEBIBIRR (1€
FTEEEB—DHEFLE  88LA
R fRes  (NEMER-EMEM - FH
EHZTEXRD  DHEMERREHE
AR EE an Ko B OR 77 B AR 7S R (i A dm
ERELTEXB—BBTEEMIML
RETERD#HCHS -

HITEFERBHBREERAIEBMEK
A2 D BREF AR EN T 2RA -

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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5

Revenue from external customers RENREF 2

Time of revenue recognition W RS

~Atapointin time -RE-BY

~ Over time -R—BEAR

Segment results PEEE

Finance costs BEMK

Profit before income tax BT H AR

Income tax expense (Note 9) FEREZ (M)

Loss for the year FRER

Other segment items included in the HEFNFABRER
consolidated statement of profitorloss ~ ZAHHEEMT :

are as follows:

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Reversal of provision for impairment

of trade receivables

Provision for slow-moving inventories

nE% - BEREENE

RREAENE
ERE SEFRERE

ERE SRR ERERD

REFERE

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2020 are as
follows:

287,481

281,481

281,481

3,028

We 25 B o SR E R 42)
BE-—T-TFE=A=+-AILEE>
DELEMT :

97,013 461,245

94,310 16,685 458,482
2,163 - 2,163

97,013 461,245

964 5,132

(3,567)

1,565
(4,814)

(3,249)

0
3,389

n
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

5

We 25 B 43 FRE B (42)

Revenue from external customers REMNREE 2 Wz 285,984 94,30 99,091 - 479,396
Time of revenue recognition WA
- Ata point in time —RE-EE 285,984 90,772 99,091 - 475,847
- QOver time - R—BRERHR - 3,549 - - 3,549
285,984 94,31 99,091 - 479,396
Segment results DEEE 9,788 3,104 (7,885) (68) 4,939
Finance costs BEHA (3,181)
Profit before income tax BRATE B AR 1758
Income tax expense (Note 9) RS (F3E9) (4672)
Loss for the year ERER (2.914)

BERBEEERAT - —S-2FFH
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

We 25 B 43 TR E B (42)

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 1414
Provision for impairment of EWE SR ERE

trade receivables 810
Reversal of provision for e E 5 8R FUR B B

impairment of trade receivables %@l (780)
Reversal of provision for BiEFERERR

slow-moving inventories (2,262)

323 1,404 = 314

160 88 = 1,058
(77) (35) - (892)
(21) (54) - (2,337)

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets, inventories, trade and
other receivables and cash and bank balances. Unallocated assets
comprise current income tax recoverable and other receivables.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated
liabilities comprise items such as other payables and accruals.

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property,
plant and equipment (Note 14).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

DHEEIBEBRENE  BEREE
REWME BVEE 7H RBRES
R R EMERRIBEARR € RIRTTHE
#hoe ROBREEBBEAT WD EANEIFTEH
R E At FEUERIR

DHABERELERE KROBREER
EEMEMNSFAREFERSER -
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5  Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 — Wzk K5 #B & Bl =)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2020 and RZEZZTF=-A=FT—HZ2HBPEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as LEBEUARBEZALEFEZAREIER
follows: FEENT

Assets ] 246,07 28,716 21,452 4,116 306,355

Liabilities AafE 128,102 14,186 18,495 4,088 164,871
Additions to non-current assets A B IERENEE 1,952 2,113 4,018 8,683
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2019 and R-ZE—NEZA=+—RZHHAEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as REEUREBEEZEZBILEFEZARBEIRR

follows: BEENT :

Assets BE 243,587 26,134 24,561 4,790 299,072
Liabilities af 114,19 8,367 13,410 4,088 139,984
Additions to non-current assets  AREIFETRHEE 22,216 123 718 - 23,057

ERAEEERAT - —2_TFEFRH
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5  Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 — Wzk K5 #B & Bl =)

The Group’s revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia REBZREFEREES TAM
Pacific, South Africa and Europe. @ - EIERREM o

Revenue Wz
Hong Kong (country of domicile) BEGEMEZEER) 255,795 303,065
Asia Pacific EE Nz 95,082 98,513
South Africa EES 99,575 72,310

Europe BOM 8,277 3,400
Other countries HiExR 2,516 2,108

461,245 479,396

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is W IEEPHIEBRRDE -
located.

Total assets EEHE
Hong Kong N 158,026 173,720
Asia Pacific EEy Nz 43,819 27,269

South Africa 3k 80,821 66,348
Europe B 19,573 26,945

302,239 294,282
Unallocated assets RKNBEE 4,116 4,790

306,355 299,072

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located. EEHEBIREEMEMSE -

104 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE
Hong Kong e

Asia Pacific 25K M &
South Africa EE:

Europe BUM

We 25 2 o SRE R 2)

Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the
assets are located.

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
located in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific, South Africa and Europe are
approximately HK$9,913,000, HK$9,573,000, HK$10,927,000 and
HK$13,408,000 respectively (2019: approximately HK$1,678,000,
HK$9,998,000, HK$9,222,000 and HK$14,067,000 respectively).

Information about major customers
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for
the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019.

NEIFRDEEREEMEMNE

URES  EAME - EEREBMZIE
RBEEAE(SBRIARIN HROE
9,913,000/ 7T + 9,573,000/ 7T * 10,927,0005%
JC 13,408,000 L (ZZE—NF : D74
1,678,000% 7T - 9,998,000 7T - 9,222,000
T 5%.14,067,00078 7T ) °

TREEERZER
BE-_ZTZ-_ZTZFR=-Z—-NLF=A
=+ —HLEFE  #BEEPIGRELERE
10%8 A F

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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(@)

(b)

Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5 — W K2 5B&E Bt )

Contract liabilities (a FAHafk
The Group has recognized the following liabilities related to REEEHRTINREFPFENEECZE
contracts with customers: &:

Contract liabilities related to sales of

HEEREF LY

electronic components, automation parts BEbAT R ES
and equipment EHzAENEE
Contract liabilities related to sales of HIHETIKER
computer products, mobile accessories FHEBC 1 MRS A
and service income BHlzEHNAaE
Contract liabilities related to sales of HEE i m AR 2
cosmetic products AHaE
Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from customers AHNABEREZEPWERESRERRT
for goods that have not yet been delivered to the customers. As at NFEFPZzEMZBREFFHE - R=
31st March 2020 and 2019, the contract liabilities mainly included T_TFRZF-NF=R=+—8"
the receipts in advance from individual customers for sales of EHABIEEEN MBS HESEE
electronic components, automation parts and equipment, sales of HERBYEPWIMMAEIRHEEET
computer products and mobile accessories and sales of cosmetic T - BRI RS - HEBRE

products after the end of respective reporting period.

oo 2 FHEBC A DA R 88 B bt 2 TE MUK
F o

Revenue recognized in relation to contract liabilities (b) B HRATHERR 2 W gk

Revenue of approximately HK$2,434,000 is recognized in relation
to contract liabilities in the year ended 31st March 2020 related to
carried forward contract liabilities as at 1st April 2019.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

REBE—_Z_ZEF=-"A=+—HILFE
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6 Other Income and Net Gains

Management fee received from third parties

Commission income

Interest income from bank deposits

Gain on bargain purchase

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gross rental income from investment
properties

Fair value loss on investment properties

Other income

6 LAt A Bl AR

BRE=T2ERE
(L ON
RITEFF BHA
EAEL G A
HE— B QR 2
REWMEHRS WAL

BREMERNVERFE
HWA

7 Loss for the Year

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Costs of inventories expensed

Employee benefit expense (Note 12)

Amortization of intangible assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(included in general and administrative expenses)

Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Provision/(reversal of provision) for slow-moving
inventories (included in cost of sales)

Expenses related to short-term leases

Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises

Auditors' remuneration

Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(included in general and administrative expenses)

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss (included in
general and administrative expenses)

7 FNIEIR
ERRSEENG (GHA) TFIEE ;

FERARX 358,614 368,194
B EEAF (M5E12) 49,660 52,569
BB EHH 37 -
EREEERE 8.624 -
mE - BELRBNE 1,930 3141
FEWE BB E R

(BRFA—RRITHR

EEER) 1,332 1,058
JEWE SRR E R ERE

(1,097) (892)
BEFERE/ (RERD)

(BEABERT) 4,212 (2,337)
FEETRE M 1,674 -
MRMEZELHERS

= 24,219
4G e 1,110 1,110
HEME - BERREEBE

(BAA—RETRERER) 23 4
B (ks BEFEEIA

—RBRETRERER)

BREEEERAT -

ZBZEFR
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8

Finance Costs 8 HHIEMA

Interest expense on short-term bank loans REBRITER A S

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaBZNEMRX

Finance lease charges RMEHEER
Income Tax Expense 9 BB X
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BENSHRREFARBEELLIRA
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or BB Z BT ERN S FIZ165% (=ZF
derived from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits — N £ 16.5%) Z TR < BINEFZ
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year RBERFRMGAERH ST UAREBL
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the BEBKIVBEREFZHERTE -

Group operates.

Current income tax BIERFTIS TR

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEN

— Overseas taxation —BINRIE

— Over provision in prior years — BT FEHEERE
Deferred income tax EEFTISH

— Overseas taxation —BINRIE
Income tax expense FrSFiF >

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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9 Income Tax Expense (continued)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate as follows:

i3 BB X )

REBBRF AN HERERE
BREMBESE Y BRRERR - &
FlanR

Profit before income tax B PSR A

Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 1&2& & F|1S 8 F & 16.5%

16.5% (2019: 16.5%) ZZE—NF 1 16.5%)
FTEZBIE
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEREEZHE
operating in other countries INGIENEE s -7
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized AR Z B AR
HIAEE
Utilization of previously unrecognized &) SE R A R FERR
tax losses BIEEE
Over provision in prior years BEFEBBEEE
Others Eth
Income tax expense FRig B2
As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda, ARARR AR B FETMK T 2 B
it is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2035. RRAF MR ZTE=RFAIEREEMN
AFEERE -
As at 31st March 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of RZTZFEF=RF=+—0 "  ~%£EBZ
approximately HK$87,789,000 (2019: HK$78,417,000) available for KRBV IBE IR L) /£87,789,0008 T (=&
offset against future profits (subject to the approval of the relevant —NE:. 78,417,000 ) - BT BB
tax authorities). No deferred tax asset had been recognized in Al SE R 2R s A1) (B B AR A5 A R it
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future BT AMERE) o WHERE LB 18 E 18 1
profit streams. The tax losses have no expiry date. RIEERIBEE - RERKREERRK

ENHR o HIBBIETRERRE -

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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10

11

Loss Per Share

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended
31st March 2020 is based on the Group's loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$5,729,000
(2019: HK$7,690,000) and on the weighted average number of
200,000,000 (2019: 200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

The diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share as

the Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019.

Dividends

Interim dividend paid of HK cents 0.5
(2019: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share

Proposed final dividend of HK cents 0.5

(2019: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share

BUR R H A%

10

11

Bk HA AR B B AR i AR 0. 5811

(ZZE—NF : 0551)
BEARE®AR0.58 1L
(ZZ—N%F : 0581)

5 1% s 18
BHEZ-_ZF=-A=+—HLEFEZ
BREABBDRADREREE AR
15 R E @ E5 18 495,729,000 T(ZE— N
7,690,000/ L) R FNE BT @R
2 hn#E 5 #4200,000,0004% ( = Z — S 4
200,000,0008% )5+ -

HNEARFTREBEE-_TE_TER_-FT
—hWEFEZA=Z+—BUEEETETHA
BEBEYEERITERR  WER

BEBE R SR ERBIEAR -
B 8,

At a meeting held on 25th June 2019, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2019.

At a meeting held on 30th June 2020, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2020. This proposed final
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
profits for the year ending 31st March 2021.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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12 Employee Benefit Expense 12 R B AR X

(a)

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMEF

Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKS BN — Rt A

Total employee benefit expense B Bt&FIF X 4258

(including directors’ remuneration) (BRESEHS)

Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BRE—EBEKE S
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the REERAREBARERELHSHEHIME
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The NESFTE([BELE]) - RES
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an BB BEVEEAETR ZEEERE
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group 2l RiEwESTE - AEBREES
and its employees makes monthly contribution to the scheme at BAEBREBERA(ERRAHFHEAES
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory FTEIRDI)5% T ARZETEER - BE
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The employer’s and LiEEHFK 2T ARA LR A30,000% T
employees’ contribution is subject to a cap of monthly earnings of (ZZ—N%F : 30,000 7T) °

HK$30,000 (2019: HK$30,000).

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 95% owned subsidiary Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. ( 7% &
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join EHEADWER B AR E RS KA
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The TRERERHSEEEQNESIE(RE
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the 28l c AEEFHE BB RATK
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer FER 2 ERMATE - REQESF
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme 2 BEREEEDIIREEWA(ER
at 13% and 11%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as R—NMN—FRERAEEZES)Z13% K
defined under the Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the 1% ARZET &I o BREFBAIN - K
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension payments SEWEEAEEERNRAKES IR
or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant KeRRz2E—LEE - BERBNHEE
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation ABERERKNEEXZTRRKS -

payable to the retired employees.

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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12
(@)

Employee Benefit Expense (continued)
Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to
join the Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The
CPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at
17% and 20%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Central Provident Fund Act, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant government agency
is responsible for the pension obligation payable to the retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the relevant local
governments, which are defined contribution plans. Contributions
are based on certain percentage of the applicable salaries of its
employees in Mainland China and have no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employee’s monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group’s contributions are expensed as incurred.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

12
(a)

12 B & A b 32 )
BRE — BT (E)
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #HEEEITHABEMNS
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the HEZTZ-TF=-A=+—HIFE "
year ended 31st March 2020 is set out below: BEERTETHRABZMEHIINT :

Executive directors HITES

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HalgE Lt
(chairman) (F/E)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl mEEL T
(chief executive officer) (7TB 4 %)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEELE

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BRI E

Independent non-executive BYKHTES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman’t &
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REHEL
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HIKREE

BERBEEERAT - —S-2FFH 113
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13
(continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31st March 2019 is set out below:

HFHENFEGTBAEME 2

BE-_Z—NF=ZA=+—HILFES
BERTETRABZBEEHIOT ¢

Executive directors HITES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure g EE

(chairman) (FE) - 25 1 26
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BeELt

(chief executive officer) (7B 4% ) - 60 2 62
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Mgk - 300 15 315
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BEREE - 300 15 315
Independent non-executive BIHTES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman 4t 4 80 S S 80
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFEL 120 - - 120
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric EKEEAE 80 - - 80

280 685 33 998
Note: B 5E

During the year ended 31st March 2020, two directors (2019: Nil) of the Group
waived emoluments in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$200,000 (2019:
Nil). No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss of office
was paid or payable to any director during the year (2019: Nil).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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13

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #FFEERFEITHABMNE &)

(continued)

Five highest paid individuals A 1= YNSR

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FR - AEERRAERSHFATTE-Z
Group for the year include no (2019: nil) executive director whose —NFE)RTES BoMEeEN
emoluments are set out above. Details of the remuneration for the X -8BTREG(ZE—HLE: AR)KIHE
year of the remaining five (2019: five) highest paid employees who ARBIEENFFETHRABZESH
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as EEZFRFFEBET :

follows:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind #4& - 2B R EMEWEF]
Employer’s contributions to defined ERMH G 2 BEHRK
contribution scheme

The emoluments of each of these highest paid individuals whose EMNEUTEEESHEALTZ#E
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: SN

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z21,000,00078 7T
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual FR - WERFMATZHAMEESTR
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation Sl EEMAIRINANE B S #EE) =X
for loss of office (2019: Nil). VEBEIBME(ZZE—NF - ®|) -

ERAEEERAT - —2_TFEFRH
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 3% - W5 R LAl E
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (a) 3k~ WK

At 31st March 2018 R-ZE-N\E=A=1-H

Cost or valuation RAEREE 2,229 10,463 24511 20,688 2,550 60,441
Accumulated depreciation 2:HrE - - (24.459) (17,004) (2,061) (43,524)
Net book amount EREE 2209 10,463 5 3,684 489 16917

Year ended 31st March 2019 BE_E-hE

ZAZt-BLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 2229 10,463 52 3,684 489 16917
Exchange differences EAESE (792) (519) (35) (104) (45) (1,495)
Additions RNE 7,084 - 1,210 m 312 8,771
Transfer to investment properties ~ SEEZRENE - (4,853) - - - (4,853)
Deficit on revaluation BB - (157) - - - (157)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —FREB AR - 14,183 - - 97 14,280
Disposals HE - - (72) (25) (34) (131)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHHBAR - - - (37) - (37)
Depreciation g - (282) (423) [1.921) 515) (3,141)
Closing net book amount FREMBE 8,521 18,835 792 1,708 304 30,160
At 31st March 2019 N-ZE-hE=A=1+-H
Cost or valuation KAME EE 8521 18,870 19,904 16,696 2626 66,617
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE - (35) (19,112) (14,988) (2,322) (36,457)
Net book amount ERFE 8,521 18,83 192 1,708 304 30,160
Year ended 31st March 2020 BE_E-2E

ZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount FORETE 8,521 18,835 792 1,708 304 30,160
Exchange differences ERER (1,703) (737) 66) 106) (135) (2.747)
Additions NE - 17 251 511 546 1431
Written off G| - - - (45) - (45)
Transfer to right-of-use assets BRSPREEE - - - (31) - (31)
Surplus on revaluation ERY - 9 - - - 9%
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB AR - - 50 66 449 565
Disposals HE - - - 3) (181) (184)
Depreciation & - (421) (305) 1,075) [129) (1,930)
Closing net book amount ERRERE 6818 17,889 728 1,025 854 27,314
At 31st March 2020 R-Z-Z25=A=+-H
Cost or valuation KAME G E 6818 18,219 19,999 17,091 3,020 65,147
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE - (330) (19.271) (16,066) (2,166) (37.833)
Net book amount EFRFE 6,818 17,889 728 1,025 854 21314
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases

(a)

(continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2020 and 2019
of the above assets is as follows:

2020

At cost
At valuation ftE

2019

14

(a)

13,646
4,573

18219

(%)

Wik - Wb Bkl (&)

T EER B _EER_TB—-AE
A=+ BZAARNESEESTAT

= =L

19,999 17,01

19,999 17,01

At cost e 8521 14007 19904 16,69 2626 61,754
At valuation ft@ - 4863 - - - 4863
8521 18,870 19904 16,69 2626 66,617

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held
under a long-term lease.

At 31st March 2020, had the leasehold properties of the Group
been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, the
carrying values would have been approximately HK$1,977,000
(2019: HK$2,195,000).

At 31st March 2020, leasehold properties with net book amount
of approximately HK$4,573,000 (2019: HK$4,863,000) have been
pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted by a bank to
a subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$4,074,000 (2019:
HK$4,247,000) (Note 23).

HEMEMLRBERIILIZRAEER
5o

R-ZB-TE=A=+—0 " #HEK&EER
ZHEMEDEELRARRTINET
B AIBRAEEAL A1.977,0008 T (=&
— L6 1 2,195,000/ 7C) °

W-Z-ZTF=A=+—0 EEFE
494,573,000 7T ( == — AL4F : 4,863,000
BT 2 HEMEDERR  (EARRITE
FHB AR EEL A4,0740008 T (=F
—JUEF 14,247,000 70) 2 B TRITREE 2
ARG (BT EE23) ©

ERNEMERAT - —S-ZFFHR
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14

(@)

(i)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The fair value of the Group's leasehold properties at 31st March
2020 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. The independent valuer is a member of
Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its leasehold
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations are
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each leasehold property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group’s annual report date.

At each financial year end the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(i) Assess leasehold properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(iii) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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(a)

(i)

W - Wb Kst i UL LR
&)

Yo ~ W Bt (40)
ARBEENER T -_TE=]
=t+-BZAFEDRBEAEEL R
BB A AREEEERMNZEE
72 (EEMERE - BB AR
NEMREEDHEEE - EHMLE
AR 3 (A 7 T G 1 O A
B% - FRERENELEARANERR
B2 HEEE RIS -

AEBCBRRENSIBRBEZEMHNIE
MECELEARRBRITFESRZIEA
K -

FARF—
BEAEMER -

FE_RRE=ZFzBEA

1 EEE

eEEsF

AEBERIBF-AREHEEMESK
BUEE RAFE  ARGEHREL
HEEGHEMTET - REEHRENELE
R EFeENMREHEREED
ERVFEZFGE  EHEAAROZE
EE - EEEMBUMGEMETZME
B NEEHMBAER - EFEEER

RLBFE-REAANEEFHRAYTH
HERF R A

REEHRFER  EFF :

(i) REBUGMERSTOMBELE
AR

(ii) BEBEFREZAERSHAL

RIEEEME 2 HEE
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14

(@)

(ii)

(b)

(i)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Valuation basis (continued)

Valuation techniques

The fair value of the leasehold properties of the Group held for own
use as at 31st March 2020 are classified as Level 2 valuations.

The fair value of leasehold properties for own use is determined
using market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price and rental of comparable properties on a price per square
feet basis using market data which is publicly available.

The Group leases machinery under non-cancellable finance lease
agreements and the lease term is 5 years.

Leases
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position

Right-of-use assets

14

(a)

(i)

(b)

(&)

Wk - Wby Bk (42)

1EEREE)

& E AT
R-ZT-FBE=F=+—10 A&E£EEH
EBRCHEMECRATFERSEASE
ZHRAEHE -

BEREENEZAFENERMSLR
EEE  RE2EAHLBMEEBE
RAHARREZTSEREF TR
EBREEFEINEERES -

AEBEREBETIBEREHEHZRE
He2s - HES M5 -

fl1E
AR A EBIEARBAZAE
aH -

Retail stores, office premises and SRR PREMER
warehouses =¥

Office equipment FYNEE

Lease Liabilities HESE

Current BIEA

Non-current JEENEA

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31st
March 2020 were HK$6,356,000.

REBEE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HBL*F
E - {F A E1E 06,356,000/ T ©

ERNEMERAT - —S-ZFFHR
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14

(b)
(ii)

(iii)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 3% ~ Wi &t KM E
(continued) (%)

Leases (continued) by MEE)

Amount recognized in the consolidated statement of profit (ij) REAIEmERT >4

or loss

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the following I MBS EH T T EEEAE %
amounts relating to leases:

NG

EREEENEMX

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Retail stores, office premises and TEEH  HAEMER
warehouse e
Office equipment PWAERME
Interest expense (included in finance costs) BB Y (5 ARNVARA)
Expenses relating to short-term leases (included in HGHHEER MY
administrative expenses) GTATTHRERER)
Note: B3
As permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard, the Group EREBEAZBEREGRXZHAIT  AEEB
has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1st April 2019, but has not restated —E-NFHA-HREPRMATENBIREE
comparatives for the 2019 reporting period. AIZE165E MY REN _—_T-hFREAM 2L
The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31st March 2020 was REBEZ-_Z-_ZEF=A=+—RHLLFE #HEZ
approximately HK$15,366,000. IR &7 4B R84 /515,366,000 7T °

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted (iii) A EEHEZBREBHHEZAKRE

for 3

The Group leases retail stores, office premises, warehouses and AEEEEREZTEEH  HRED
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of ¥ BEAKHEE HAOA-—RETELAEIF
1105 years. EHHF

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain HERRDERNBEER  EFEE%
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease B ERRR GG - BT HBEARE
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security ZHEEEP  ERERN  HEHZ
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased W T e - HEEETARAE
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. BEERR -

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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14

(b)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

15

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Variable lease payments

Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment terms that are
linked to an index or a rate.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximize
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group's operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

Residual value guarantees
The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in relation to
leases during the year ended 31st March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Investment Properties

Non-current asset — at fair value
Opening balance at 1st April

Exchange differences M =R
Transfer from leasehold properties ERaHEME
Fair value loss NFEREE

FRBDEE-RATE
RO A—RZF&e

14

(b)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

15

AR YT YL 3
(%)

iN-ACD)

I EEET
AEBZHEY NS S EEHEHN R
TR AR -

JE/RRA I EIERE
AEBEZEMERERGSER MK ILE
B -REEAKEEXBEEMERZ
BEMS  %ZSEERDANBERS
BIEZEEN - FINANASBOERR
RIPEERETRAKREMIEERELH
AITHE -

T ERR
KRBE-B-BF=A=t-ALSF
B ARETEREAREE0HBE
BRR(ZF-NE : 8) -

BEWE

Closing balance at 31st March

R=ERA=+—B2FRER

Gross rental income from
investment properties
Less: Direct operating expenses from
investment properties that generated
rental income

REMEHESWALRE

o EEESWAZIRE
MEZEERLERX

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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15

(a)

Investment Properties (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st March
2020 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. The independent valuer is a member of
Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

At 31st March 2020, investment properties with aggregate amount
of approximately HK$4,518,000 (2019: HK$4,805,000) have been
pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted by a bank to
a subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$4,074,000 (2019:
HK$4,195,000).

The fair value change is included in “other income and net gains”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations are
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each investment property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group's annual report date.

As at 31st March 2020 and 2019, the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(ii) Assess investment properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(iii) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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(a)

BEW¥E e
AEBREYMER _T-_TE=7
=+—AZATEDREEAE®YTE
BErBUABRELGEEMNZ AR
T2 AR o B ik 8 A
MEMRGEETHEes  E6MHMm
RiEY R G E S EAEEE AR EAH
T8 BEREENE2EREYERS
B2 TR BREBEEL -

R-ZZE-_TF=-ZRF=+—8 L&LHEYD
4,518,000/ 70 ( = F — L& : 4,805,000/8
TIZEREMEDEERR - ERE1TE
FHIE QR & L 540740008 T (=F
—NLEF 1 4,195,000 ) 2 B TIRITRE
AR o

RPEFEFPHARGEBERR [HBKRAR
Wt FHE A -

i 4 3 e

14 EEF
AEERIBF-RAREREVESK
BIUfhE RAFE - ARMEEHRBL
BEXMBEMTET REBRSHEE
R EFgEMREHRARED
ERVFEZFE  BEHEARKRAEZE
MEE - EEEMBUGEMETZGE
B ABRELME R - EFE(EER
RLOBF - REAAEERFHRAYTH
HERF R A

(i) ZEBUGHERSTHORAAEEXN
WARUR

i EBRBEEE 2 EERE AL
B FEREDEGEES
&

(iii) B (HERNEI TR o
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15

(b)

Investment Properties (continued)

Valuation basis (continued)

Valuation techniques

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group held
to earn rentals as at 31st March 2020 are classified as Level 2
valuations.

The fair value of investment properties is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price and rental
of comparable properties on a price per square feet basis using
market data which is publicly available.

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book
values are analyzed as follows:

Leases of between 10 and 50 years:
— Properties held outside Hong Kong

AENF10FEZ504 -
—ERBEINGEZME

15

(b)

BEW¥E 2

e I 4t (4%

1 E
R-ZZE-_ZTFE=A=+—H0 K&EHF
EURBDASZENEZAFERS
BAE_RIHE-

BREWMEZAFETNERTHHLBOAE
RS EAHRLEEMEEBER
HARBB 2T HERIZETFHRER
HEEFEZANEERAS -

REEZREMERS(BRERFE) D
T

ERNEMERAT - —S-ZFFHR
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15 Investment Properties (continued) 15
Valuation basis (continued)
(c) Fair value hierarchy (c)

The following tables present the investment properties of the
Group carried at fair value by valuation method as at 31st March
2020 and 2019:

BEW¥E =)

{8 B e (48)

RN FEEZR
TREWR-_ZE-_ZEFR_ZT—NEF=
A=+—ARFEEFZEDAERZA
TEARZIREYE

2020 —B-EBF
Recurring fair value measurements  #& &M A FEHE
— Properties held outside —EBRBBIMNFEZ
Hong Kong mE
2019 —E-NE
Recurring fair value measurements & E AN LG E
— Properties held outside —EBRBRIMNFEZ
Hong Kong mE - 4,805 - 4,805
- 4,805 = 4,805

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

(d) Leasing arrangement (d)
The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases run for a period
of 2 years. None of the leases include variable lease payment.

For minimum lease payment receivables on leases of investment
properties are disclosed in Note 28.
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16 Goodwill and other intangible assets 16

At 31st March 2019

Cost

Accumulated amortization and
impairment

N=-Z-hFE=A=+—H
RAE
KT EE MORE

7 e L Ath i

Net book amount

FREFE

Year ended 31st March 2020

BE_Z-%%=A

=t—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE
Exchange differences M =
Additions NE
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B — P 8 2 &)
Amortization charge BiERx
Closing net book amount FEEREFE

At 31st March 2020 N-B-_ZFBHE=A=+—H

Cost RAME

Accumulated amortization and st NRE
impairment

Net book amount BREHE(E

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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16

Goodwill and other intangible assets
(continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to an individual CGU in the trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components, and equipment by Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited
(“Swan"). During the year ended 31st March 2020, the directors of
the Company determine that there are not impairment of this CGU.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating unit ("CGU")
identified according to country of operation and operating segment
as follows:

Electronic Trading Business — South Africa EFEE

16

ikl

7 e LAt JE S ¥ E ()

BTETRENR BEEEIEESR
Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited([ Swan]) E & &
DEEFEN  THKESCEYRSE
EB - REE-TE-ZEF=A=+—H
EFE  ARREFETCHRESEESEN
A FERE ©

BEIEEAEEREERRIEED
BmiEE 2 ReELEM - FIBWT:

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based
on value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on a business forecast approved by management
covering a b-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 17.6%. The
CGU's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated at 3%
growth rate. Revenue growth rate are based on the directors’ best
estimate on the average growth rate of the industry. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the estimate
of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the past performance and
management’s expectation for the market development.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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REZDFHHEEBRACHAERER
RETE - MR ER176% - REE
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RIS - WHRIBRXTIRBESY
TEFHRERZRERTMETE ° £
REEFEZZEGARBRIRRS
MA/REZ GG BRAEHERRE
ME - BRAMGGFIREBEARERER
BHmniR2EHMMEL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B T 5 A M

17

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March 2020 and 2019, all of
which are held indirectly by the Company (except for Mobicon (BVI)
Limited which is held directly by the Company), are as follows:

A Plus Computer Holdings
Limited

APlus 2 Computer Limited
REFERERAT

APower Holdings Limited
REREERRAT

AESI (HK) Limited
K-RH(ER)
N

Langa Holdings (Proprietary

Limited

Mantech Electronics
(Proprigtary Limited

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

ABRAES  BRAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% RO

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% RO

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% RO

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BIELAE - BRAF

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BHEANE  ARAT

Investment holding in Hong Kong

RERETREER

17

Trading and distribution of computer

products and mobile accessories

in Hong Kong
REBETERERR
FRENEEENH

Trading and distribution of computer

products, cosmetic products and

mabile accessories in Hong Kong

RERENERER (tHmR

FHEHEEEN#

Provision of information technology

services in Hong Kong

RERREEARERS

Investment holding in South Africa

REFETREALR

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment

in South Africa

REFEAEFEH  THR

BREEENH

FE} 8§ 2> W]
RE_ZEFELR-_ZET—NF=ZA=+—
B MBAR(FHAARMERSE(E
Mobicon (BVI) LimitedfR 4h - ER AR FEH
BEA))FHBHT

Ordinary USD800,000
LER800,000E T

Ordinary HK$1,000
LER 0008 T

Ordinary HK$500,000
LBRE00,0007E T

Ordinary HK$1,000
LalR 0008

Ordinary South
African Rand ("ZAR"} 100
BRI

Ordinary ZAR 100
ERRI0EHRE

100%

100%

60%

100%

61%

61%

100%

100%

60%

100%

61%

61%

BERBEEERAT - —S-2FFH 127
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17 Subsidiaries (continued) 17

128

MBM Properties (Proprietary)
Limited

MCU Power Limited
REHERLF

Milliard Devices Limited

SARTHBRAT

Mabicon (BVI) Limited

Mabicon (Taiwan) Limited

REEREIRNER AR

Mobicon Agent Limited
ERBIREER LA

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BHELAE  BRAF

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk BRAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk BRAA

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RBRLES  BRAT

Republic of China,
limited liability company

hERE - ARAF

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAH

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in South Africa

REFETETENR  THR
BEEEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in Hong Kong

NERETETRL  THR
BEEEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in Hong Kong

NERETETRL  THR
BEEEENH

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBETRERR

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in Taiwan

REBETETENR  THR
BREEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in Hong Kong

REBETETEN  ThE
BEEEENH

Ordinary ZAR 100
BRI

Ordinary HK$1,000,000
LRIR1,000000% 7T

Ordinary HK$1,000,000
LRIR1,000000% 7T

Ordinary USD10,000
LAR0000ET

Ordinary New Taiwan dollar

5,000,000

B R5,000,00057 &1

Ordinary HK$10,000
TRIR00008TT

61%

100%

10%

100%

100%

100%

61%

100%

10%

100%

100%

100%
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17 Subsidiaries (continued) 17 MWEBAWE 2

Mobicon Electronic Trading PRC, wholly-owned Trading and distribution of electronic  Registered capital 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited foreign enterprise parts, components and equipment HK$2,000,000
(Note i) hE HEEELR inthe PRC M &7%2,000,0007% ¢
ERRETES (R RPBETETRE TR
RRAT(BE) BEEEENH
Mobicon Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$10 100% 100%
ERNIETEERR AR limited liability company parts, components and equipment  ZR10E T
% BRAA in Hong Kong
REBENETRE  THR
BEEEENH
Mobicon International Limited  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD100 100% 100%
limited liailty company ~ REBE(TRELR EBRI00ET

RERLES  BRAT

Mobicon Malaysia Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD1 100% 100%
limited liability company RERRITRE R LERIET
ZERNES ARAT
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD1,000 61% 61%
Limited limited liabilty company RERETRERR LHR1 05T

RBRAES  BRAW

Mobicon-Remote Electronic ~ Republic of Singapore, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary Singaporean 100% 100%
Pte Ltd. limited liability company parts, components and equipment dollar 300,000
TIRERE BRARF in Singapore B RR300,0008 Mtk T
RIRENETRS
ThRESEERNH

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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17 Subsidiaries (continued) 17

Maobicon-Remote Electronic
Sdn. Bhd.

Narciso Gomes - Componentes

Electronicos Lda

Partners 2 Limited

Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited

Switch Technique KZN
Proprietary Limited

Videocom Technology
(HK) Limited
HEL(EE)BRAR

Malaysia,
limited liability company

BRASG  BRAAE

Portugal,
limited liability company

AT ARLA

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RBRLES  BRAT

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BFEHAE - BRATF

Republic of South Africa, limited

liability company
BEANE - ARAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAH
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Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in Malaysia

RERBTETEFEN
ThRESEERNH

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in Portugal

REETETETEL
ThRESEERNH

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBETRERR

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in South Africa

REFETETENR  THR
BEETANH

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in South Africa

REFETETENR  THR
BEEEANH

Trading of cosmetic products
in Hong Kong
RERETIRRER

Ordinary Malaysian
Ringgit 1,000,000

331,000,000
BREEMEH

Ordinary EURO 1,221,000

L@R1,21 0006

Ordinary USD100

LRRI0ET

Ordinary ZAR 1,000

BRI 000E S

Ordinary ZAR 100
LR R

Ordinary HK$2
LERIAT

95%

51%

100%

65%

15%

100%

9%

51%

100%

100%
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17

Subsidiaries (continued)
Note:

(i) The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December
in accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not
coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group were prepared based on the financial statements of the subsidiary
for the twelve months ended 31st March 2020.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31st March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest for the year is approximately
HK$35,200,000, of which HK$26,474,000 is for Mobicon-Mantech
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Mobicon-Mantech Group”)
in relation to the Group’s business in South Africa. The non-
controlling interest in respect of the other subsidiary is not
material.

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest
Set out below are the summarized financial information for the
subsidiary, Mobicon-Mantech Group that has a non-controlling
interest that is material to the Group.

Summarized statement of financial position

Current TE

17

bt & A Wl (42)

MaE -

(i) RIBEWEERTE @ ZMBRE K
FEHEHRT-A=+—H #BXK%
BYT—5 - AEBEZEAPBH®RERTD
REZMNBARABE _ZT_TF=A
=t —HIEt—EAZHBREES -

EWNBRAANRBE-_Z_ZTF=A
=t+t—BHEFEANEAERBEEIMNE
BOIZEEER(CE—NF  |) -

BRI AR

AN E 2 FEVE IR HE & 48 4) /335,200,000
FETT - EL R 26,474,000/ 7T B H KA S
& JF % 7 <~ Mobicon-Mantech Holdings
Limited 5 EL Bf /& 2 &) ([ Mobicon-Mantech £t
E]) o B AR ZIEEBRERSET T
Esp N

EEEAHZREZZHBLAZHE
T 3 & 51IFff B & BIMobicon-Mantech £ B 2
B AR E o Mobicon-MantechtE B B8
HAREENEBEAZIFIRRMES -

HBERRRBE

70,277
(26,299)

57,249
(17,051)

Assets BE
Liabilities =N
Total current net assets BN EE AL

43,978

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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17 Subsidiaries (continued)
Material non-controlling interests (contin

17
ued)

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest (continued)
Summarized statement of financial position (continued)

Non-current
Assets
Liabilities

SR
4%
ah

Pt I 2> W )

TR IR PR HE 25 (%)
AEEAHZRER B LT ZHE
ERIHE ()

BERREEE(F)

21,848
(4,030)

Total non-current net assets

FEMENE B FE MR

17,818

Net assets

BEEFE

61,796

Summarized statement of comprehensive income

Revenue

2ER BRI E

99,474

Profit before income tax

B FS MR A

16,676
(4,698)

11,978 11,650
(14,044) (11,506)

Income tax expense FriSBifx

Profit for the year F N5 )

Other comprehensive expense Hh 2 EAY

Total comprehensive (expense)/income FrzmE(AX),/
for the year I ON-EE

(2,066)

Total comprehensive (expense)/income
allocated to non-controlling interests

DT IR R
EE(FAX),WABE

(806)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

BRI IR a2 BE
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17

Subsidiaries (continued)

17

Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest (continued)

Summarized statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Overseas income tax paid

REXBELECRESRE

rReEX%(BR)EEZ
RE

EREINTEH

Fit & 2> W )

R Ik PR HE 25 (%)
AEEAHZRERZWE R ZH%
EREE ()

BenBENE

(6,955) 10,343
(3,7117) (4,647)

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities

Net cash generated from financing activities

REEB(BR)EEZ
REF8

RAEEHEL(BA)2
BEF8

BEERBELZREFHR

(10,672) 5,696

620 (13,323)
9,455 10,486

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Exchange losses on cash and bank balances

RERAREZENORD),

BnFEHE
FONzREREEFEY

B MIRITHEE 2 FE L8

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

FRZB\GRBASFED

The information above is the amount before inter-company

eliminations.

EHE R ARV B AR B S A
ZEH -
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18 Inventories 18

Electronic parts, components and equipment

ETTM - T RESR

e

138,592 137,768
13,556 12,382
13,884 14,894

166,032 165,044

Computer products and mobile accessories BB o e F R
Cosmetic products {bigm
19 Trade Receivables 19

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for
sales of goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The following is an
aged analysis of trade receivables, net of provision of impairment,
presented based on due dates:

0 to 60 days ZTF60H
61 to 120 days 6121204
121 to 180 days 1212180H
181 to 365 days 1812365 H

JE W B 5 Bl ok
rER-RETETEFZEEEEHHT
HZEETE - EIHPAFHE 25 Z B
BHRN(EMBBERE) Rk T
™

47,762 43,937
2,944
263
258

51,227

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair values of trade receivables. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of customers. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security in respect of its trade receivables.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020
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19

20

Trade Receivables (continued) 19 JEWHE S E® =)
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure REEEATENBHRELEREIT T
lifetime ECL allowance for all trade receivables. BILRIE R ERABMERKE SRR

e MRREREERRE -

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables BUWE SEREFBEREZ ZFWT :
are as follows:

At beginning of the year F4)

Impact of HKFRS 9 BB S LR
FIR B
Provision for impairment of trade receivables — fEUE 5 BE ZUR E &5
Reversal of provision of trade receivables JEWE 5 BR R
Exchange differences PEH Z5E
At end of the year FR
Cash and Bank Balances 20 & RHBITHR

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 28,830
Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount RNEE 2R & KIRITH R B IE4)2,052,000
of approximately HK$2,052,000 (2019: HK$1,293,000) was BIL(ZZF—LF © 1,293,000/ 70) AAR
denominated in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The WA ERERRPEAM 2 RE - Hi#
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign ZENAREHE 2 ERRBINE RIBZ
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland ZEsELPERM - AXRREBNTHE
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange MY INE B AR AR BIFTHRR o

control promulgated by the PRC government.

ERAEEERAT - —2_TFEFRH
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21 Trade Payables 21  JEAHE 5 WRK
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: FEE SRR ER T T

0 to 60 days EF60H 25,419

61 to 120 days 6121204
121 to 180 days 1212180 H
181 to 365 days 1812365H
22 Loan From a Shareholder 22 BORE
The amount is unsecured, interest free and was repayable on FHEFIEAEER 22 RAERERE
demand. & e
23  Short-Term Bank Loans 23 HEMSTE
All short-term bank loans are due within one year and denominated FIBRBARTEFRER—FANEEH - I
in the following currencies: A TFIEESEE :

Hong Kong dollar

US dollar ETT

Euro BrE

Singapore dollar o
The effective interest rates of the short-term bank loans at the RiERH - RERITERZERER X
reporting date range from approximately 3.14% to 5.46% (2019: T HI314%E5.46% (=ZF—NF 1 1.05%
1.05% to 5.40%). £540%) °
The Group's certain banking facilities are secured by the leasehold AEBETRITREARNEE ZHEY
properties (Note 14) and investment properties (Note 15) of the 5 (KIaE14) AR E W (B 5E15) (BRI -
Group.
As at 31st March 2020, the Group had unutilized facilities of RZTZFTF=A=+—8 "  *EEXK
approximately HK$36,487,000 (2019:36,105,000). AR E 4 536,487,000 T (ZZF— A1

£F : 36,105,000/87C) °
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23

24

Short-Term Bank Loans (continued)

The Group was technically in breach of covenant under a loan
agreement with a bank (the "Bank”) as the Group's tangible net
worth were less than that required by the Bank. At 31st March
2020, the outstanding bank loan from the Bank was approximately
HK$13,000,000. As at the date of this report, the Bank has not
made any demand for immediate repayment of the loan. If the loan
would be demanded for immediate payment, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to repay the loan without hindering the operating cash
flow for several months.

Finance Lease Liabilities

23

24

WIS ER 2
HRASEEZEFREEFEERNRT
(IZBITHZ2REER ML AER
ERMEERTEZBRITEITNER
HEBEB I 2RZ#H R _E-_TFE=H
=+—8 - WRZBITZRITEROAE
13,000,000/ 7T - HEARE B - %R
T EELERISEEEHEER 2T
Bk - HEBKNBEERBER
ARABEERAEAEEEE VNS
BR RUNEEEHEEZR BEfTg¥HH
BEEANCEREREBRTE -

il 5 L B £ £

Amounts payable under REMHEET
finance leases: FERTFRIA -
Within one year —ER 16 14
In more than one year and —FEERER
not more than five years 31 28
47 42
Less: Future finance charges B ARIREIHSE (5) -
Present value of lease liabilities HEaBEZHE 42 42
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 & = +—1{& 3 W% &}
months (shown under current liabilities) B2 ZE(ERS)
BETIIER) (14)
28

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its fixture and furniture
under finance leases. The lease term is 5 years. As at 31st March
2019, the effective borrowing rate was 7.74%. Interest rates are
fixed at the contract date. The lease is on a fixed repayment basis
and no arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental
payments. At the end of the lease term, the Group has the option to
purchase the fixture and furniture at nominal prices.

All finance lease obligations are denominated in SGD.

AEBEZBREREREMEERE
TERENERM - HEAHF RN _-F
—NFE=ZA=+—8 EREENXA
774% ° MERGHBREE - HERE
EEMEER Y - BWEmET L ERIKA
BENRRH  REHRTER  AKE
RERZRERBEEREEREM

P B BB TR A LA I T AHE -

ERAEEERAT - —2_TFEFRH
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25 Deferred Tax Liabilities 25 EREBLIHAE
Analysis of deferred tax liabilities as follows: RERIEEESTWT ¢

Deferred tax liabilities BERIESE
Deferred tax liabilities are expected to be recoverable and settled FEHEEHEEEEN —FR KD &G
after one year. 5 e
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year were as REBEBERFAZEHNT -
follows:

As at 1st April 2019 RZZE—-NFMNA—H

Exchange differences T 5 ZE
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BB A F)
Charged to consolidated RERA B R

statement of profit or loss

As at 31st March 2020 R-E-_THF=H=+—H
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26 Share Capital 26 A

Authorized: SERE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &A% E{E0.10/& T2

3/ A% 2,000,000,0008% 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE
200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &R E{E0.10/ T2
38 %200,000,000/%
27 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 27 #HFHBI&RELENGE
Cash Flows
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated BRETEHAIRMELEEBEE 2R
from operations: SRR AR
Profit before income tax BRER1S AT F 1,758
Adjustments for: LATRIEE 2 % -
— Amortization of intangible assets —E A EH -
— Depreciation of property, —ME - BE&
plant and equipment RAETE 3141
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FEREEETE -
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEWE BER
plant and equipment B i 4
— Write-off of property, plant and —MSETEE - BB &
equipment B -
— Interest income —FBUA (239)
— Interest expense —FlERX 3,181
— Provision for impairment of —EIE SRR
trade receivables AR 1,058
— Reversal of provision for impairment of —EWE SERFRE
trade receivables e LEEqEl (892)
— Fair value loss on investment properties —REWEAFEEIE 58
— Gain on bargain purchase — B EIREE 2 WS (5)
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary —HE—RMBARZ WS (391)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
— Inventories -F8E 1,975
— Trade receivables — BB S8R R 1,930
— Other receivables and deposits — Efh e R IE R iR e 7,61
— Trade payables —-ENEBE SRR 1,979
— Other payables and accruals — E A R RUE
FE=T 2 F 2,084
— Contract liabilities —aHaRE 2,431
Net cash generated from operations REEBEEZIRGFHE 25,689

BERBEEERAT - —S-2FFH 139
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27 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 27 #EEHEREBEME 2
Cash Flows (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing Rl B A 2 AR B IR
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from TR EEEREFHEEZBEL
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. BEHFE PERASRIRSEH - g
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which BEDELEZEEBORNIENAEE
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the HERERERAPBERBEEH 2R
Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from EREBZEE-

financing activities.

As at 1st April 2019 RZE-NFEA—H 96,425
Adoption of HKFRS 16 REBT RS EL

5165 14,777 - 14,735
Additions of lease liabilities & & &M 6,256 - 6,256
Financing cash flow BERERE (8,823) (10,202) (8,270)
Interest expense Memy 511 2,990 3,567

Exchange differences [EHESE (782) (340) (1,122)

As at 31st March 2020 R-ZB-EE=8=+—-H 12,005 67,586 111,591

As at 1t April 2018 RZB-\EmA-A - b7 92,590 92,647
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FHHBAR - - 6,925 6,925
Financing cash flow RERSRE 21,245 (16) (26,907) (5,678)
Interest expense ey - 2 3,179 3,181
Exchange differences FEHED - 1) (649) (650)
As at 31st March 2019 RZE-NE=R=+—H 21,245 42 75,138 96,425
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28
(@)

(b)

Commitments 28 R

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is (a) RBBMERYE - ALEELEMA
the lessee

As at 31st March 2020, the Group had future aggregate minimum R-BE_TF=A=+—H K&EEH
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect HAMEZAARELEHENAZRE
of rented premises as follows: NHERSHIBEENT

No later than one year —FR
Later than one year and no later than five years —4E&ERER

Operating lease payments represent rental payables by the Group KEHERBEEAEBERETTES
for certain of its retail outlets, office premises and warehouses. WA EMERERENZES - M
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from BB ERIETE - HerXHE
1 to 3 years. HANMEISTE -

Operating lease receivables — where the Group is the (b) &% &5 REWeak JH — A4 7 2 i A
lessor A

As at 31st March 2020, the Group have future minimum lease RZZEZEFEF=A=+—0 BEAE
receivables under non-cancellable leases with third parties. BEEE=FIT 2 AIREESE - A&

B A7 B R R R AR B FEUOR

Minimum operating lease payments LEHE
receivable: SR FEWRIE -

No later than one year —&R
Later than one year and no later than five years —&F#4£EBRAERN

Operating lease receivables represent rentals receivable by the KEHERWFIREAEEREKREY
Group for its investment properties. Lease periods are two years. ¥EW e - HEARHMSE -

ERAEEERAT - —2_TFEFRH
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29 Related Party Transactions 29

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following significant related party transactions

38 Wk N\ 52 5
P S B IRER EA FREE S
ARERFENBRTATEABHAL

during the year:

(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and  (a)
related parties are summarized below:

X5

NEBERBYATETZERALFHE
BEaan T

Rentals paid/payable to M-Bar Limited & 3¢,/ 3 {<M-Bar
Limited 2 fA & (i), (v)
Sales to PC Supply Limited and HETEEHRER
its subsidiaries (“PC Supply Group”) NE| REHWEB AT
([EERER]) (ii)
Purchases from PC Supply Group WEBPEBMFE (ii)
Commission income received from B Ut E Clover Display Limited
Clover Display Limited 2 WA
Management fee paid to PC Supply EXfEERER
Group ZERE
Consultancy fee paid to 2 & fFRYM Innovation Ltd.
RYM Innovation Ltd. ZEEM B
Notes: Ffi5E
(i) M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic (i) M-Bar Limited £ Mobicon Electronic Supplies

Supplies Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung
(20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with M-Bar Limited
were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties.

(if) PC Supply Limited is owned as to 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer
Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus is
beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the Company. Sales
to and purchases from PC Supply Group were conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

(iii) Commission income received from Clover Display Limited was conducted in
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2020

Company Limited 2 2 &M B AR © &2
ABEAARESREIERTAREF L
(30%)  HEEZ T (30%) « HEELE
(20%) RGBS 4 (20%) Ess SR - B
M-Bar Limited 7] 32 2 & 158 Ty IRET 40 %
FBE ZAGKETL »

(ii) BEEPBRARNDHEEBEKEER
AR BEREME]) RERELTHSE
99.99% &% 0.01% % - BEEBMIEHAR
RIEEREZRE AR E1E 1 (30%)
a1 (30%)  HEEZE 54 (20%) &
BRI (20%) BEmiEs - BEEHE
EETZHERRBER SR —RES
BRPIRETAE F R ZARFGELT ©
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29

(b)

(d)

Related Party Transactions (continued) 29 BABIANLZR G )

Notes: (continued) sk - (&)

(iv) Management fee paid to PC Supply Group was conducted in the normal (iv) EXNEESHEREREN —RE
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties. BBREFRRITNE I MEZ GRS -

(v) During the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019, these transactions (v) REBEEZZT_TFR=ZFT—NLF=A
constituted continuing connected transactions as defined in the Listing =E+—HIEFE ZEXHEKRLTHR
Rules. AT AEZIFBRIER S ©

(vi) RYM Innovation Ltd. (“RYM") is owned as to 50% by Mr. Hung Lok Tin. (vi) RYM Innovation Ltd.([RYM | ) F 3t 44 K 4 4
Mr. Hung Lok Tin is the son of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, a director of A% o RERELEAERNER
Mobicon Group Limited. Consultancy fee paid to RYM was conducted in ERABESAREE LT 2R F-BEX
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting MRYMZ BB & Ty — M S5 B2 IRRT
parties. & TR 2GR -

Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31st March 2020 (b} RZTZZTF=RA=+—H  ~EBEH

were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited of approximately b & Uk 3% 8 B 15 B 2 £ M-Bar Limited 2
HK$464,000 (2019: HK$738,000). HEZ 24464008 L (ZF— N F :
738,000/ 7LT) °

Included in other payables and accruals of the Group were  (c) K%@ﬁﬁtﬂ’iﬁ RIE N JERT B A B IR

amounts due to minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of -5 T B B 2 /) > BUIR 3R 3K IE 494,066,000
approximately HK$4,066,000 (2019: HK$4,066,000). The amounts BIT(ZT— ni 4,066,000 7T) - B
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. FIAREER R NAREREER -
Key management compensation (d) FEEEA S WM

Short-term employee benefits EEEE T
Post-employment benefits BERL 2R

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in Note 13 to EEHME— S EBENGRETE®R
the consolidated financial statements. KMIFE13 ©

ERNEMERAT - —S-ZFFHR
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30 Business Combination — Acquisition of
Subsidiaries

(a) On 2nd April 2019, the Group acquired 65% equity interests
in Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$7,576,000. The principal business of Swan is
trading and distribution of electrical products and components in
South Africa.

Net assets acquired:

30

(a)

B OF — Wi R 2 )

RZZE-NAFMNAZH  ~NEEBKE
Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited 65% A& AN #E %5
RS HRAELA7,576,0005 7T © Swanz £ B
E¥NAEEIEEERSHEETERRT
o

WREFT S & EFE -

Property, plant and equipment ME - R k& 46
Inventories s 12,112
Trade receivables FEURE 5 8RR 3121
Other receivables and deposits Hib el RE Rige 1,837
Cash and bank balances Be RIS 597
Trade payables ENEBER (3.824)
Other payables and accruals Hfth A 5R0E R FE AT B B (232)
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS T A& (96)
Deferred tax liabilities ELFIAA E (2.241)
Total identifiable assets acquired WS s pI B ERE 11,320
Less: Cash consideration W IReRE (7,576)
3,744
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE (3,962)
Goodwill 7 (218)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEATEA 2 R e R F5 ¢
Cash consideration paid BERBRESRE (7,576)
Cash and bank balances acquired WEATS IR & RIBRITHE 8 597
(6,979)

The goodwill is attributable to the anticipated profitability and
operating synergies from combining the operation of the Group and
Swan. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax
purpose.
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30

Business Combination — Acquisition of
Subsidiaries (continued)

As at the date of acquisition, the fair values of the trade
receivables and other receivables were their gross contractual
amounts. None of them was expected to be uncollectible.

Included in the loss for the year is approximately HK$216,000
profit attributable to the additional business generated by Swan.
Revenue for the year includes approximately HK$30,391,000
generated by Swan.

Had the acquisition been completed on 2nd April 2019, the
Group's revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$491,636,000 and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$3,033,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 2nd April 2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

30

B OF — W B R 2 v )

RUEE R A - EUWE R R H M EK
REZAFER/REANBESE - YA
B R e o

FREEBESWanFT K 2 iK% 2
i F 49216,0008 7T - FAREBRIEK B
SwanZ Y %5 #4930,391,00058 7T, °

WEBEEHER-_TE—NLFOAZARE
o AR E 2 FRIE S %) £491,636,000
BT R F NESE K #9/53,033,0008 7T © It
HELZERERFAZAH T —F
ERMMEESEER -2 —NLEFHEA
ZHREK - NEBSAEE RS WE
RISEEE - M RERRREEZTE

Al e

BREKEERQAE - —2-2FFRH
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30 Business Combination — Acquisition of 30 &% & fF — WEH B 2 ¥ =)
Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) On 1st February 2020, the Group acquired 75% equity interests  (b) RZBE-_ZEF-_A—H  AEBWE
in Switch Technique KZN Proprietary Limited (“Switch”) at a Switch Technique KZN Proprietary Limited
cash consideration of approximately HK$2,367,000. The principal ([Switch 1) 75% e A% - BeRELOR
business of Switch is trading and distribution of electrical products 2,367,000 7T © Switchz X B AT
and components in South Africa. FEERNDHEFERRITY

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KR 519
Inventories 7E 4,172
Trade receivables FEURE 5 8RR 3,582
Other receivables and deposits H I E RiES 85
Cash and bank balances R e RRITHEER 885
Trade payables ENEBER (3.010)
Other payables and accruals H At BT FRIE R JEEHE A (1,125)
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFR SR B fE (386)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHBEEE (430)
Total identifiable assets acquired W BE A3 Al s B8 FE B ME 4,292
Less: Cash consideration W IReRE (2,367
1,925
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE (1,059)
Gain on bargain purchase S @I BE I 866
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHREFMELZ RS RHIFE
Cash consideration paid BENBEERE (2,367)
Cash and bank balances acquired WEFTS IR & RIBRITH 8 885
(1,482)

As at the date of acquisition, the fair values of the trade
receivables and other receivables were their gross contractual
amounts. None of them was expected to be uncollectible.

Included in the loss for the year is approximately HK$817,000
loss attributable to the additional business generated by Switch.
Revenue for the year includes approximately HK$4,669,000
generated by Switch.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1st April 2019, the
Group's revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$483,262,000 and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,962,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on Tst April 2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.
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30 Business Combination — Acquisition of
Subsidiaries (continued)

(c) On 16th January 2019, the Group acquired 51% equity interests
in Narciso Gomes — Componentes Electronicos Lda (“Narciso
Gomes") at a cash consideration of approximately HK$6,007,000.
The principal business of Narciso Gomes is trading and distribution
of electronic parts, components and equipment in Portugal.

Net assets acquired:

30

(c)

XG0 — WUHE M E A A )

RZZBE-AE—-A+RAB  FNEERE
Narciso Gomes — Componentes Electronicos Lda
(I'Narciso Gomes |)51% Bk A #E2s - ]/ &
RAB %) A6,007,000% 7T ° Narciso Gomes 2
TEEBRERAETEEROHETE
-~ T Rigkas o

WRE PTG E EFE -

Property, plant and equipment

ME - BE KRR 14,280

Inventories FE 4,533
Trade receivables FEU B 5 BR X 298
Other receivables and deposits H B MiES 1,485
Cash and bank balances W RRITES 123
Trade payables JENB BER (1,422)
Other payables and accruals Hofth i < 308 I fE 5T B (584)
Short term bank loans EHIRTTER (6,925)
Total identifiable assets acquired WRERTIS PR B E4ME 11,788
Less: Cash consideration o RERE (6,007)
5,781
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A (5,776)
Gain on bargain purchase B UE 2 e 5
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W FTEA 2 IR T %%
Cash consideration paid BENBERE (6,007)
Cash and bank balances acquired WEEPTIS IR & R IRTTAE A 123
(5,884)

Included in the loss for the year is approximately HK$40,000
profit attributable to the additional business generated by Narciso
Gomes. Revenue for the year includes approximately HK$1,657,000
generated by Narciso Gomes.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1st April 2018, the
Group's revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$485,392,000 and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,901,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1st
April 2018, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

FE BB ENarciso Gomes P s 2 2 #rig
75 2% 740,000 7T - FE WS B IER
E Narciso Gomes 2 Uz 471,657,000 7T ©

WRBEEECR _E—-—N\FNA—H=%
X AN EF Az W A8 ) 485,392,000
BT R FEEER 452,901,000 7T © It
HBEL2EERNERFBZA T FT—F
BERM W EEEE R - —/\ENA
—HBEK  AEEBABEHSS WS
REEHEE T TBIEARKEREZTE
pEI

BERAEEERLAR - —B-TFFR
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31 Statement of Financial Position of the 31 A2 &| 2 B #ik 3 % &AL
Company and Movement of Reserves of the 2

Company
As at 31st March 2020
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a)
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AT ZIHE 100,640 100,640
100,640 100,640
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary e — R B A B A 5,210 10,212
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHES 84 86
5,294 10,298
Total assets EEHAE 105,934 110,938
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAh e~ 7108 K e Rt & 22 22
22 22
Net current assets REEERE 5,272 10,276
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBARE 105,912 110,916
Net assets EEEHE 105,912 110,916
Capital and reserves attributable to AATEREEA
the equity holders of the Company B R R E
Share capital &N 20,000 20,000
Reserves = 85,912 90,916
Total equity RERBRE 105,912 110,916
The statement of financial position of the Company were approved RARZHMBMRRARER T _ZF
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 30th June ANA=TH %é%/\ﬁt/ﬁ&?ﬁ% iz -
2020 and signed on its behalf by: WHTNIEERRESGESE
HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
el B8E
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
B BIEEFTHAAE
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31

(b)

Statement of Financial Position of the
Company and Movement of Reserves of the

Company (continued)

As at 31st March 2020 (continued)

Movement of reserves of the Company

31

(b)

A0 vl 2 WSRO R AR A
HZ e e

R BE=A=1+—H&)
KRR IHERD

Balance at 1st April 2018 RZE—N\F

MA—B &% 16,706 67,097 9,114 92,917
Loss for the year FREE - - (1 (1)
Dividends e - - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at 31st March 2019 RZE—REF

—A=t+—Hz&# 16,706 67,097 7,113 90,916
Balance at 1st April 2019 RZE—NF

mMA—B & 16,706 67,097 7,113 90,916
Loss for the year FREE - - (3,004) (3,004)
Dividends f% = - - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at 31st March 2020 R-Z—Z&

=A=+-AH

ZiE 16,706 67,097 2,109 85,912
Representing: RE:
2020 final dividend “ETFERERE 1,000
Others Hit 1,109

2,109
Note: fI5E -

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value of the
ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries
acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took

place on 18th April 2001.

BABRBREARBDMBTEBERZEE  BRE
“EE-FNATN\BETZEEARBBRNFAF
MEBARCEEFELER

ERAEEERAT - —2_TFEFRH
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32

Subsequent Event

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued to
be implemented across the globe. The Company is paying close
attention to the development of, and the disruption to business
and economic activities caused by, the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the Company’s result of operations, cash
flows and financial condition. Given the dynamic nature of the
COVID-19 outbreak, it is not practicable to provide a quantitative
estimate of the potential impact of this outbreak. As at the date on
which the publication of this annual report is approved, the Board
was not aware of any material adverse impact on the financial
statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.
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Financial Summary

S B 2L

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Results

AEEBREAEMBRFREZEAMREREER

BEMEHIILT

e

Revenue Wz

Profit/(loss) before income tax BT SR AT A
(B18)

Income tax expense PSR 2

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),SEF

Attributable to: A

Equity holders of the Company A Bz EHAEA

Non-controlling interests IR

461,245

1,565
(4,814)

(3,249)

(5,729)
2,480

(3.249)

479,396 546,672 627,771 684,374
1,758 (5,929) 6,493 15,743
(4,672) (5,080) (5,241) (5,587
(2,914) (11,009) 1,252 10,156
(7,690) (17,132) (3,763) 3,766
4,776 6,123 5,015 6,390
(2,914) (11,009) 1,252 10,156

ERAEEERAT - —2_TFEFRH
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Assets and Liabilities Mk afE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 21,314 30,160 16,917 18,461 20,942
Right-of-use assets P REEE 11,755 - - - -
Intangible assets EEE 63 - - - -
Investment properties EME 4,518 4,805 - - -
Goodwill g 17 - - - -
Other receivables H el EoR 3,360 4,032 4,704 5,376 -
Current assets REAE 259,174 260,075 276,348 293,191 316,814
Total assets BEEHE 306,355 299,072 297,969 317,028 337,756
Current liabilities MEAE (158,383) (139,956) (129,776) (135,855) (156,176)
Net current assets REBEETE 100,791 120,119 146,572 157,336 160,638

Total assets less current EEAERARBER

liabilities 141,972 159,116 168,193 181,173 181,580
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (6,488) (28) (43) (52) -
Net assets BEEFE 141,484 159,088 168,150 181,121 181,580
Capital and reserves ERATEBFEA

attributable to the PR R

equity holders of

the Company
Share capital &N 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves G 86,284 104,450 122,107 138,706 143,456

106,284 124,450 142,107 158,706 163,456
Non-controlling interests FERER 35,200 34,638 26,043 22,415 18,124
Total equity R 141,484 159,088 168,150 181,121 181,580
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